
 

 
i 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL, PENNS PLACE, 
PETERSFIELD, HAMPSHIRE GU31 4EX 

 
Telephone:  01730 266551 

Website:  www.easthants.gov.uk 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

Date: Thursday, 5 November 2020 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Skype for Business 

 
 

 
Membership:      Councillor S Pond (Chairman) 
 
Councillors A Williams (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, D Evans, A Glass, G Hill, 
S Hunt, M Johnson, P Langley, C Louisson, S Schillemore, I Thomas and 
E Woodard 
 
Reserves: Councillors K Budden, S Burns, K Carter, N Drew and N Taylor 
 

(THE QUORUM FOR THIS MEETING IS 7 VOTING COUNCILLORS) 
 

 
 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
 
Gill Kneller 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Date of Publication: Wednesday, 28 October 2020 
 
Contact Officer: Cynthia Haveron 01730 234092 
 Email:  Cynthia.haveron@easthants.gov.uk 
 
 

Working in Partnership 



 

 
ii 

 

  Page Nos 

  
 

1 - 8 

1.  Apologies for Absence   
 

 

2.  Confirmation of Minutes   
 

Please note that it is helpful if Councillors could give advance notice, 
to Democratic Services, of any questions they wish to raise in respect 
of the Minutes. 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2020, circulated under 
separate cover. 
 

 

 

3.  Chairman's Announcements   
 

 

4.  Declarations of Interest   
 

Councillors are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest which they may have in any item of 
business on the agenda no later than when that item is reached.  
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under the Localism Act 
2011.  You must withdraw from the meeting when the committee 
discusses and votes on the matter. 
 

 

 

Matters for Decision 
 

 
 

5.  Supplementary Matters   
 

 

6.  Future Items   
 

9 - 12 

7.  Report of the Director of Regeneration and Place   
 

 

PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council Items 
 

 
 

Section I 
 

 
 

 There are no Section I items within this agenda.  
 

Section II 
 

 
 

7.(i)   55562/005/OUT/SaH - Development Land East of Horndean, 
Rowlands Castle Road, Horndean, Waterlooville   
 

13 - 68 

 

PART 2 - South Downs National Park Items 
 

 
 

 There are no Part 2 items within this agenda. 
 
   



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report considers planning applications submitted to the Council, as the Local 
Planning Authority, for determination.  It may also include items which are being 
determined by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority. 

East Hampshire District Council is acting as an agent for the South Downs National 
Park Authority in accordance with an agreement signed under Section 101 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  Under this arrangement the Council can determine 
planning applications on sites within the South Downs National Park area of the district 
on behalf of the National Park Authority.  Applications for the South Downs National 
Park are prefixed with the letters SDNP.  

2.1. SECTIONS IN THE REPORT 

The report is divided into two main parts;  

Part 1 – East Hampshire District Council 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which are 
being determined or considered by the Council as the Local Planning Authority.   

Part 2 – South Downs National Park Authority 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which fall 
within East Hampshire District’s area of the South Downs National Park and which the 
Council is determining or considering on behalf of the South Downs National Park 
Authority.   

Each part of the report is split into two sections:   

Section 1 - Schedule of Application Recommendations  

This Section deals with planning applications that have been received by the Council 
and which require the Planning Committee to make a decision to grant or refuse 
permission.  Each item contains a full description of the proposed development, details 
of the consultations undertaken and summary of the responses received, an 
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and concludes with 
a recommendation.  A presentation with slides will be made to Committee.  Public 
participation is allowed on Section 1 items. 

Section 2 – Other matters  

This Section deals with other planning matters which are not the subject of a current 
application or are current applications which have already been determined and have 
been subject to a committee resolution to grant or refuse.  

Page 1

Agenda Annex



 

No formal presentation will be made to Committee, unless required, and there will be 
no public participation.” 

2.2. All information, advice, and recommendations contained in this report are understood 
to be correct at the time of publication, which is more than one week in advance of the 
Committee meeting.  Because of the time constraints, some reports may have been 
prepared in advance of the final date for consultee responses or neighbour comment.  
Where a recommendation is either altered or substantially amended between 
preparing the report and the Committee meeting or where additional information has 
been received, a separate Supplementary Matters paper will be circulated at the 
meeting to assist Councillors.  This paper will be available to members of the public. 

3. PLANNING POLICY 

3.1. All planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise (Section 38(6) of the Town and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  If the development plan contains material policies 
or proposals and there are no other material considerations, the application should be 
determined in accordance with the development plan.  Where there are other material 
considerations, the development plan will be the starting point, and other material 
considerations will also be taken into account.  One such consideration will be whether 
the plan policies are relevant and up to date.  The relevant development plans are the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan, The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy 
2014, the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations 
2016 and the saved policies in the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 
2006.  The Development Plan also includes made neighbourhood Plans. 

3.2. Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the relevant 
development plan will have been used as a background document and the relevant 
policies taken into account in the preparation of the report on each item.   

3.3. The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan have policies that 
contain criteria that must be met if a particular form of development is to be allowed.  
Paragraph 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February  2019 states:  
“Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.”   

3.4. The Council may sometimes decide to grant planning permission for development that 
departs from a development plan if other material considerations indicate that it should 
proceed.  One of these material considerations is whether the plan is up-to-date in 
terms of housing delivery.  

4. OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS  

4.1. Material considerations must be genuine planning considerations, i.e. they must be 
related to the development and use of land in the public interest.  They must also fairly 
and reasonably relate to the application concerned.  The Courts are the arbiters of 
what constitutes a material consideration.  All the fundamental factors involved in land-
use planning are included, such as the number, size, layout, siting, design, and 
external appearance of buildings and the proposed means of access, together with 

Page 2



 

landscaping, impact on the neighbourhood, and the availability of infrastructure.   

4.2. Matters that should not be taken into account are: 

 loss of property value  loss of view 
 land and boundary disputes  matters covered by leases or covenants 
 the impact of construction 

work 
 property maintenance issues 

 need for development (save in 
certain defined circumstances) 

 the identity or personal characteristics of 
the applicant 

 competition between firms,   or matters that are dealt with by other 
legislation, such as the Building 
Regulations (e.g. structural safety, fire 
risks, means of escape in the event of 
fire etc). - The fact that a development 
may conflict with other legislation is not 
a reason to refuse planning permission 
or defer a decision.  It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislation. 

 

4.3. Government statements of planning policy are material considerations that must be 
taken into account in deciding planning applications.  These statements cannot make 
irrelevant any matter that is a material consideration in a particular case.  Nevertheless, 
where such statements indicate the weight that should be given to relevant 
considerations, decision-makers must have proper regard to them.   

4.4. In those cases where the development plan is not relevant, for example because there 
are no relevant policies, the planning application should be determined on its merits in 
the light of all the material considerations.  

5. PLANNING CONDITIONS AND OBLIGATIONS  

5.1. The Council can impose conditions on planning permissions only where there is a clear 
land-use planning justification for doing so.  Conditions should be used in a way that is 
clearly seen to be fair, reasonable, and practicable.  One key test of whether a 
particular condition is necessary is if planning permission would have to be refused if 
the condition were not imposed.  Otherwise, such a condition would need special and 
precise justification.  

 

5.2. Where it is not possible to include matters that are necessary for a development to 
proceed in a planning condition the Council can agree a planning obligation under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Planning obligations should 
meet the Secretary of State's policy tests.  They should be:  
 necessary; 
 relevant to planning; 
 directly related to the proposed development; 
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and 

Page 3



 

 reasonable in all other respects. 

 

5.3. The use of planning obligations is governed by the fundamental principle that planning 
permission may not be bought or sold.  It is therefore not legitimate for unacceptable 
development to be permitted because of benefits or inducements offered by a 
developer, which are not necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms.  Planning obligations are only a material consideration to be taken into account 
when deciding whether to grant planning permission, and it is for the Council to decide 
what weight should be attached to a particular material consideration.  

6. PLANNING APPEALS  

Applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State if an application is refused, or 
granted subject to conditions, or if it has not been determined within the specified period.  
Appeals are administered by the Planning Inspectorate - an executive agency reporting to 
the Secretary of State.  Appeals are considered by written representation, hearings, and 
public inquiries.  In planning appeals, it is normally expected that both parties will pay their 
own costs.  Costs can however, be awarded against the Council where it: 
 

(a) fails to determine a planning application in good time – the Council must have good 
planning reasons to explain and justify why it did not make a decision in time. 

(b) fails to carry out adequate prior investigation consistent with national policy and 
guidance. 

(c) prevents or delays development that should clearly be permitted having regard to 
the development plan, national policy statements and any other material 
considerations.  It is the Councils responsibility to produce evidence to show clearly, 
why the development cannot be permitted. Reasons for refusal must be 

 complete,  
 precise,  
 specific 
 relevant to the application, and 
 supported by substantiated evidence.  

(d) fails to show reasonable planning grounds for taking a decision contrary to officer 
advice  

(e) gives too much weight to neighbour objections - the extent of local opposition is not, 
in itself, a reasonable ground for resisting development. To carry significant weight, 
opposition should be founded on valid planning reasons that is supported by 
substantial evidence. 

(f) relies on unsubstantiated objections where they include valid reasons for refusal but 
rely almost exclusively on local opposition from third parties, through 
representations and attendance at an inquiry or hearing, to support the decision. 

(g) fails to show that it has considered the possibility of imposing relevant planning 
conditions to allow development to proceed. 

 
The following are examples given in Planning Practice Guidance of circumstances that 
may lead to an award of costs against the Council: 
(a) ignoring relevant national policy – for example, the advice in NPPF, 
(b) where a proposal is contrary to the development plan but the relevant policy has 

been superseded by national policy which advocates an entirely different approach.  

Page 4



 

An example might be ignoring national advice in paragraph 77 of NPPF which may 
allow some market housing to bring forward a rural affordable housing exception 
site, 

(c) acting contrary to, or not following, well-established case law, 
(d) persisting in objections to a scheme, or part of a scheme, which has already been 

granted planning permission or which the Secretary of State or an Inspector has 
previously indicated to be acceptable, 

(e) not determining like cases in a like manner – for example, imposing an additional 
reason for refusal on a similar scheme to one previously considered by the planning 
authority where circumstances have not materially changed, 

(f) failing to grant a further planning permission for a scheme the subject of an extant 
or recently expired permission where there has been no material change in 
circumstances, 

(g) refusing to approve reserved matters when the objections relate to issues that 
should already have been considered at the outline stage, 

(h) imposing a condition that is not necessary, precise, enforceable, relevant to 
planning, relevant to the development permitted or reasonable and thereby does 
not comply with the advice in the Planning Practice Guidance on the use of 
conditions in planning permissions, 

(i) requiring the appellant to enter into or complete a planning obligation which does 
not accord with the tests in para 56 of the NPPF, or 

(j) not imposing conditions on a grant of planning permission where conditions could 
effectively have overcome the objection identified – for example, in relation to 
highway matters. 

 

7. THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S ROLE 

7.1 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to direct the council to refer an application 
to him/her for decision. This is what is meant by a 'called-in' application. In general, 
this power of intervention is used selectively and the Secretary of State will not interfere 
with the jurisdiction of local planning authorities unless it is necessary to do so.  The 
Planning Practice Guidance sets out the type of development proposals that directs 
local authorities to consult with the Secretary of State before granting planning 
permission. 

 

8. PROPRIETY 

8.1 Councillors are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in planning 
matters and not simply their individual Wards.  When determining planning applications 
they must take into account planning considerations only.  This can include views 
expressed on relevant planning matters.  Local opposition or support for a proposal is 
not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission, unless it is founded 
upon valid planning reasons.  

9. PRIVATE INTERESTS  

9.1 The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another, although private interests may coincide with the public 

Page 5



 

interest in some cases.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and private 
interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not whether 
owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial or other 
loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would unacceptably 
affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings that ought to be protected 
in the public interest. Covenants or the maintenance/protection of private property are 
therefore not material planning consideration. 

10. OTHER LEGISLATION  

10.1 Non-planning legislation may place statutory requirements on planning authorities, or 
may set out controls that need to be taken into account (for example, environmental 
legislation, or water resources legislation).  The Council, in exercising its functions, 
also must have regard to the general requirements of other legislation, in particular:  

 The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which prevents discrimination 
directly or indirectly in any functions, carried out by public authorities.  

 The Equality Act 2010, which places a duty on all those responsible for providing 
a service to the public not to discriminate against disabled people by providing a 
lower standard of service.  

 The Human Rights Act 1998, which incorporated provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) into UK law.  The general purpose of the 
ECHR is to protect human rights and fundamental freedoms and to maintain and 
promote the ideals and values of a democratic society.  It sets out the basic rights 
of every person together with the limitations placed on these rights in order to 
protect the rights of others and of the wider community.  The specific Articles of 
the ECHR relevant to planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and public hearing), 
Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence), 
Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (Right to 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property).  All planning 
applications are assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the 
development proposal is compatible with the Act.  If there is a potential conflict, 
this will be highlighted in the report on the relevant item. 
 

11. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

11.1 The Council has adopted a scheme for the public to speak on all Section 1 items. 
Where public speaking is allowed, the applicant or their representative, the local 
Parish/Town Council, and one objector may provide a written deputation to the 
Committee, with a maximum of 450 words.  Members of the public wishing to submit a 
deputation must have forwarded their deputation to the Meeting Administrator in 
Democratic Services by 5pm, two days prior to the meeting.  For example, the deadline 
for a meeting held on a Thursday would be 5pm on Tuesday. 

11.2 For probity reasons associated with advance disclosure of information under the 
Access to Information Act, neither the applicant, Parish Council, nor an objector will be 
allowed to circulate, show or display further material at, or just before, the Committee 
meeting.   

 

Page 6



 

12.  INSPECTION OF DRAWINGS 

12.1 All drawings are available for inspection on the internet at www.easthants.gov.uk  

13. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  However, in the event 
of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the Council’s decision.  
Rarely and in certain circumstances, decisions on planning applications may result in 
the Council facing an application for costs arising from a planning appeal.  Officers will 
aim to alert Members where this may be likely and provide appropriate advice in such 
circumstances. 

 
Simon Jenkins 
Director of Regeneration and Place 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 the individual planning application file (reference quoted in each case) 
 the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 
 East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 2014 
 East Hampshire Employment & Housing allocations Plan 2016 
 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006 - Saved Policies 
 Adopted Neighbourhood Plans: Alton, Bentley, Medstead & Four Marks, Ropley, 

Petersfield, Liss, and East Meon 
 Government advice and guidance contained in circulars, National Planning Policy 

Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and ministerial statements 
 any other document specifically referred to in the report. 

Page 7

http://www.easthats.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
5 November 2020 

 
POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE / SITE VISIT 

 
The following items are for INFORMATION purposes only.  They comprise major 
applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for 
consideration or are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by 
the Committee or determined under the Scheme of Delegation.  The purpose of this report 
is to highlight the receipt of these applications to ensure that any issues that they raise are 
highlighted at an early stage.  Councillors may also suggest possible future site visits 
under this item. 
 

 Reference Description and Address 

1 58651 
 
 
 

Stables and all weather arena. 
 
Land East of Reynolds Cottage, Standford Lane, 
Standford, Bordon 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 

2 SDNP/20/04230/FUL 
 
 

Retrospective application for a replacement mobile home, 
one skid-mounted stable and two skid-mounted field 
shelters. 
 
Land Off Church Lane, Greatham, Liss, Hampshire 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 

3 SDNP/20/02590/OUT 
 

Outline Application -   Three Storey block comprising 
27no. flats with access following demolition of existing 
dwelling (Access only to be considered) 
 
Oakfield, Love Lane, Petersfield, GU31 4BW 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 
 

Page 9



4 SDNP/20/02749/FUL 
 

Change of use of playing field to equestrian with stable 
block and setting back of gated access following 
demolition of pavilion and tea room 
 
Land and Playing Field South of White Lodge, Mercury 
Lane, East Meon, Petersfield, Hampshire 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 

5 SDNP/20/02835/FUL 
 

Change of use to the raising of rare breed weaner pigs, 
with the siting of a temporary mobile home for 3 years and 
Retention of existing shipping containers to be used for 
storage (additional information received on 06/10/2020 - 
drainage details) 
 
Land and Farm Building South of Gosport Road, 
Privett, Alton, Hampshire 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 

6 
 
 
 
 
 

SDNP/20/03195/FUL Retrospective application for replacement of boardwalk, 
construction of islands, launch, bridge, remodelling and 
stabilisation of banks, regrading of slipway, remodelling of 
lake bed and creation of fish nurseries, with associated 
landscaping 
 
Heath Lake, Heath Road, Petersfield, Hampshire 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



7 
 

SDNP/20/03352/FUL Two storey building to provide an increase of 24 
bedrooms, with related servicing, parking and landscaping 
following demolition of an existing outbuilding store and 
minor amendments to the existing home 
 
Forest Brow Residential Home, 63 Forest Road, Liss 
GU33 7BL 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 

8 
 

SDNP/20/03541/FUL Conversion of and alterations to barns, including infill 
extension, to create four dwellings with associated 
parking, car barn and cycle store, extension to form bin 
store, landscaping and use of barn for ancillary storage 
and storage of maintenance equipment, following the 
demolition of agricultural buildings, swimming pool and 
pool house 
 
Hay Place, Hay Place Lane, Binsted, Alton, GU34 4PE 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too 
early to make any decision as to how this application will 
be determined. 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



 
PART 1 

 
EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE 
 

Related planning matters to be considered by the  
Council as the Local Planning Authority 

 
5 November 2020 

SECTION 2 – OTHER MATTERS 
 

 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to up-date Members of the progress of the discussions regarding 
the S106 agreement and to agree minor changes to the S106 Heads of Terms since the 
original Committee resolution of the 11th June this year. 
 
ORIGINAL COMMITTEE RESOLUTION 
 
On the 11th June 2020, the Planning Committee considered an outline application 
with all matters reserved, except the means of access to the highway network (junction 
arrangements) and associated highway improvements, for the demolition of existing buildings 
and the residential-led (C3) mixed-use development of the site with up to 800 dwellings, up to 
2ha of employment land (uses B1 and B2), a Local Centre (including: local retail (food and 
non-food A1); financial and professional services (A2); restaurants, cafés, and drinking 
establishments (A3 and A4), hot food takeaways (A5), together with a primary school (D1) 
and community facilities (D1/D2), informal and formal open space, allotments, and acoustic 
bunds, together with associated drainage, utilities and all other associated and necessary 
infrastructure (additional information and amended plans received 31/07/19, 06/09/19, 
26/09/19, 21/10/19, 04/03/20, 04/05/20, and 10/06/20). 
 
At that time, it was resolved that outline permission should be approved, subject to the 
following resolution: 
 
A. the solicitor to the Council be authorised to draw up a Section 106 legal agreement and; 
 
B. provided that by October 2020 all relevant parties enter into the Section 106 agreement 
with the Council to secure: 
 

Page 14



i. employment and training package, and delivery of employment allocated land on site (no 
later than phase 2) and provision of road connection to employment land boundary via Dell 
Piece East / Havant Road roundabout of adoptable standard; 
 
ii. Transport contribution to be used towards highway improvement measures, improvements 
to sustainable modes of transport, and other measures that provide direct benefit to the site. 
 
iv. Provision of a 1.2ha site for a school on-site 
 
v. Provision of structural planting early in the development and future maintenance and 
management 
 
vi. Provision, management and maintenance of sports facilities, public open space and 
allotments; 
 
vii. Provision, management and maintenance of surface water drainage system (including 
SUDs) and foul drainage system; 
 
viii. Provision, management and maintenance in perpetuity of landscape planting and ecology 
buffers; 
 
ix. Matters of general management and maintenance in perpetuity of other common areas 
including of the access and estate roads; 
 
x. Provision of 40% affordable housing and tenure split for affordable housing, stipulating 30% 
intermediate (shared ownership) and 70% affordable rent; 
 
xi. Occupancy criteria stipulating a cascade for occupancy of affordable rent units within the 
settlement, then adjoining parishes and then wider to the District; 
 
xii. A review of the provision of the Affordable Housing Supply, mix and allocation prior to the 
commencement of each phase of the development; 
 
xv. Community project worker contribution then the Director of Regeneration and Place be 
authorised to: 
 
a) Make minor changes to conditions, as necessary, with agreement of Chairman and Ward 
Councillors, and 
 
b) grant OUTLINE PERMISSION subject to the following conditions. 
 
However, in the event that a satisfactory S106 agreement to secure points i. to xv.  
above is not completed by October 2020, then permission will be refused under the Councils 
adopted scheme of delegation, unless an extension of time is agreed by Chairman of this 
Committee. 
 

Page 15



The Minutes of this meeting are attached at Appendix 1 to this report.  
 
The S106 will not be completed by the 31st October 2020 however the Chairman of the 
Planning Committee has agreed to an extension to time for completion of the S106 
agreement until 11th December 2020. 
 
PROGRESS OF S106 AGREEMENT 
 
Since the 11th June Planning Committee resolution, work has continued to take place on all 
sides to move towards completion of the S106 agreement. The legal agreement is 
progressing well however during the course of drafting the agreement it has come to light that 
the full £75,000 financial contribution required from the applicant 1 towards the installation of 
a Skate Park within the site is not now required and the sum should be reduced to £50,000.  
The amended full list of S106 Heads of Terms forms Appendix 2 to this report. 
 
Also during the drafting of the agreement and following discussions with Officers, Horndean 
Parish Council, and the applicant, it has also been agreed that a Clerk of Works should be 
employed to monitor the construction of the Community Building and sports facilities to 
ensure that they are provided to the appropriate standards.  This would be at cost to the 
applicant and it is therefore proposed, with the agreement of the applicant having been 
confirmed, that the £25,000 surplus not now required for the Skate Park contribution, be now 
allocated to the provision of a Clerk of Works.  This would form a new Head of Term within 
the S106 legal agreement (17.1 at Appendix 1 attached to this report).   
 
The amendment to the existing Heads of Terms is necessary under (and would pass) the 
statutory ‘tests’ contained within regulation 122 of The Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (as amended by the 2011 and 2019 Regulations): 
 
(a)necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b)directly related to the development; and 
(c)fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 
In considering these amendment, Members are reminded the proposed development itself is 
not up for reconsideration.  It has already been resolved by the Planning Committee on the 
11th June 2020 to grant outline consent subject to a S106 legal agreement and conditions and 
Officers are only seeking agreement to the proposed minor amendments to the S106 legal 
agreement. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
It is requested that the Heads of Terms of the S106 Legal agreement be amended as per 
revised Heads of Terms list attached at Appendix 2 to this report: 
 

1. £75,000 Skate Park contribution reduced to £50,000 
 

2. Additional Head of Term: Clerk of Works financial contribution of £25,000 

Page 16



RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the report be AGREED and the S106 Heads of Terms be amended accordingly. 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



  1 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Planning Committee held on 11 June 2020 
 
 
Present  
 
Councillor: S Pond (Chairman) 
 
Councillors: A Williams (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, D Evans, A Glass, S Hunt, 
M Johnson, P Langley, S Schillemore, N Taylor, I Thomas, E Woodard and 
K Budden (Reserve)  
 
 
177. Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies were received from Cllr C Louisson. 
 

178. Confirmation of Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 May 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

179. Confirmation of Attendance  
 
Councillors present verbally confirmed their attendance. 
 

180. Chairman's Announcements  
 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting which was a virtual meeting 
and was being broadcast on the Council’s website.  She also outlined the 
format for the meeting. 
 

181. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

182. Acceptance of Supplementary Matters  
 
Councillors present verbally confirmed that they had received and read the 
Supplementary Matters paper which included information received since the 
agenda had been published.  These were reported verbally at the meeting and 
are attached as Annex A. 
 

183. Future Items  
 
The committee agreed to visit the following site should officers be mindful to 
permit: 
 

 55711/001 – Land East of, Hole Lane, Bentley, Farnham. 
 Page 19



  2 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

184. Report of the Director of Regeneration and Place  
 
The report of the Director of Regeneration and Place was considered and it 
was RESOLVED that: 
 

Application No., Site and Description: 

 

Resolution: 

55562/005/OUT 

 

Development Land East of Horndean, 

Rowlands Castle Road, Horndean, 

Waterlooville 

 

Outline planning application with all 

matters reserved, except the means of 

access to the highway network (junction 

arrangements) and associated highway 

improvements, for the demolition of 

existing buildings and the residential-led 

(C3) mixed-use development of the site 

with up to 800 dwellings, up to 2ha of 

employment land (uses B1 and B2), a 

Local Centre (including: local retail (food 

and non-food A1); financial and 

professional services (A2); restaurants, 

cafés, and drinking establishments (A3 

and A4), hot food takeaways (A5), 

together with a primary school (D1) and 

community facilities (D2)), informal and 

formal open space, allotments, and 

acoustic bunds, together with 

associated drainage, utilities and all 

other associated and necessary 

infrastructure (additional information and 

amended plans received 31/07/19, 

06/09/19, 26/09/19, 21/10/19, 04/03/20, 

04/05/20, and 10/06/20) 

 

Outline Permission subject to the 

completion of a S.106 Legal Agreement 

and the conditions as set out in Appendix 

A 

 
 

185. PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council - Applications and related 
planning matters to be determined or considered by the Council as the 
local planning authority 
 

186. SECTION 1 - APPLICATIONS REPORTED IN DETAIL 
 
 
 

Page 20



  3 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

187. 55562/005/OUT/SaH - Development Land East of Horndean, Rowlands 
Castle Road, Horndean, Waterlooville  
 
Outline planning application with all matters reserved, except the means of 
access to the highway network (junction arrangements) and associated 
highway improvements, for the demolition of existing buildings and the 
residential-led (C3) mixed-use development of the site with up to 800 dwellings, 
up to 2ha of employment land (uses B1 and B2), a Local Centre (including: 
local retail (food and non-food A1); financial and professional services (A2); 
restaurants, cafés, and drinking establishments (A3 and A4), hot food 
takeaways (A5), together with a primary school (D1) and community facilities 
(D2)), informal and formal open space, allotments, and acoustic bunds, 
together with associated drainage, utilities and all other associated and 
necessary infrastructure (additional information and amended plans received 
31/07/19, 06/09/19, 26/09/19, 21/10/19, 04/03/20, and 04/05/20) 
 
The Principal Planning Officer introduced the application and updated the 
committee on two further supplementary matters.  These were an access 
drawing ending 2G on page 286 of the report had been superseded by an 
amended plan as in the report, it was wrongly annotated to show an existing 
footpath stopped up and a pedestrian crossing being removed on the West side 
of junction 2 of the A3(M), this was not the intention. 
 
There was also a correction to Condition 32 as the word ‘road’ was omitted in 
error.  It should read ‘No access from Rowlands Castle Road…’ 
 
The site formed site allocation HN1 of the adopted East Hampshire Local Plan 
Housing and Employment Land Allocations 2016.  Members were only 
considering the detailed access to the site with appearance, scale, layout and 
landscaping forming the reserved matters to be dealt with subsequent to any 
approval. 
 
The officer outlined the key constraints which included a high-pressure gas 
main running down through the site, the South Downs National Park (SDNP) 
boundary, the fact that the site was host to Bechstein bats and that there was 
an existing footpath and bridleway running through the site.   
 
The officer summarised the proposed highway works and outlined the main 
issues which included principle of development, affordable housing, impact on 
the character and appearance of the area, highway/access implications, impact 
on the amenity of neighbouring properties, drainage and flood risk, biodiversity 
and S.106 legal obligations/CIL. 
 
In terms of the principle of development, it followed a previously lapsed outlined 
approval which had consent for the same development aside from an increase 
of 100 dwellings and also now proposed no elderly accommodation which was 
instead to be delivered through other current applications.  Importantly, the site 
was allocated for this quantum of development and taking into account the size 
of the site, the increase of 100 dwellings was considered to be small.  Given the 
site allocation and lapsed outline consent, the principle of development had 
effectively been established twice and in view of the detailed work carried out Page 21



  4 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

by the applicant in support of the application, consultee responses, 
recommended conditions and S.106 obligations, it was not considered there 
were any reasons why members should take an alternative view in this 
instance. 
 
Some hedgerow along Havant Road was required to be removed in order to 
achieve minimum site lines for the accesses.  Any hedgerow not required to be 
removed would be expected to be retained but this was a detailed reserved 
matter. 
 
Highway works proposed were the same as those under the lapsed outline 
permission with the exception of the installation of a new secondary Southern 
access which was considered minor and was acceptable in highway terms. 
 
Concerns had been raised regarding traffic generation and access, however, 
the application had been subject to thorough assessment and both Highways 
England and Hampshire County Council (HCC) Highways did not raise any 
objections to the proposed development subject to the appropriate conditions 
and S.106 obligations being attached to any approval. 
 
She addressed concerns raised in the deputations and questions submitted by 
members of the committee prior to the meeting. 
 
The committee had received written deputations which had been distributed to 
members of the committee and published on the Council’s website prior to the 
meeting.  These submissions were received from: 
 
(1) Mr Lee, an objector. 
 
As set out in Appendix 1 attached to these minutes. 
 
(2) Horndean Parish Council. 
 
As set out in Appendix 2 attached to these minutes. 
 
(3) Rowlands Castle Parish Council. 
 
As set out in Appendix 3 attached to these minutes. 
 
(4) Bloor Homes, the applicant. 
 
As set out in Appendix 4 attached to these minutes. 
 
(5) Cllr Hatter, the local ward councillor. 
 
As set out in Appendix 5 attached to these minutes. 
 
The Chairman invited Councillors to ask questions of officers. 
 
Cllr Johnson, a local ward councillor, referred to Rowlands Castle Parish 
Council’s submission and in particular, their comments about inadequate Page 22



  5 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

assessment of traffic.  He pointed out that page 209 of the report showed that 
the speed limit on the B2149 was due to increase from 30mph to 40mph for the 
rest of the road running along the Southern block of the development before 
then changing to National Speed Limit.  The road currently suffered from 
excessive speeding and he questioned whether the 30mph should be retained. 
 
In response, the Hampshire Highways officer said that as part of the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) process, there would be an opportunity to comment on 
that.  The view of HCC Traffic Management Team was that the nature of the 
road moving further South was not suitable for a 30mph road.  The access road 
had been designed for a 40mph road so Hampshire Highways did not have any 
safety concerns in that regard. 
 
Concern was expressed with regard to the amount of hedgerow being 
removed.  Assurance was sought that the minimum amount of hedgerow would 
be removed and any pavement considered would be placed inside the 
hedgerow on the site as opposed to outside.  When they become overgrown, 
there was the potential for pedestrians to be forced into the road.  Following the 
public consultation in Horndean, members of the public were keen to retain the 
rural character of the area which is what the hedgerows did. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised that in order to provide the requisite 
sight lines, a certain amount of hedgerow would have to be removed.  
However, the local authority would only allow what was necessary and all else 
should be retained.  In terms of the footpath, this could not be commented on 
as it depended upon the finer detail of the scheme, but it could be considered 
as part of the pre-application for that particular parcel of the site and included 
as an informative.  No doubt the applicant had noted this concern. 
 
It was asked whether there would be an opportunity to have cycleways and 
dual footpaths within the site to encourage cycling and walking to neighbouring 
areas.  The Principal Planning Officer said that a key aspect of the 
development was to encourage activity and the applicant wanted to make the 
two areas of the site interconnected in terms of cycleways and footpaths.  The 
existing footpaths and bridleway would be maintained and the site would be 
fully accessible both within and to the wider area. 
 
A question was raised as to whether the roads within the development would 
be adopted by the county.  The Hampshire Highways officer said that this was 
more a question for the applicant.  HCC were keen to engage with applicants 
as early on as they could to ensure that roads would be adopted.  
 
It was noted that under the S.106 obligations, £201K would go towards multi-
modal access to Rowlands Castle railway station.  It was felt that those living 
on the development would be more likely to use Havant or Petersfield railway 
station for travel due to frequency of service.  In reply, the Hampshire Highways 
officer advised that the figure was intended to be used towards improving 
signage in the area for example, finger post signs and additional cycle parking 
that would encourage multi-modal access.  Rowlands Castle was the closest 
railway station to the site and therefore, it was expected that there would be 
multi-modal sustainable travel from the site. Page 23



  6 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

 
It was understood that the creation of the fifth arm to the Dell Piece East 
roundabout would not be constructed until the occupation of the 230th dwelling.  
However, it was felt that all major works on the A3(M) junction should happen 
at an early stage in order to provide free-flowing traffic. 
 
The Chairman invited Cllr Evans, a local ward councillor, to open the debate. 
 
The Hazelton Farm site had overwhelmingly been chosen by the public as 
being the most suitable site for the quantum of 700 homes needed in Horndean 
for the Joint Core Strategy (JCS).  This application would bring forward the 
much-needed homes with 40% affordable and a long list of community benefits. 
 
Cllr Evans was delighted that the suggested D2 use for the community building 
had been changed to D1 and D2. 
 
Natural England commented that all open spaces should remain so in 
perpetuity and it was noteworthy that Horndean Parish Council had previously 
expressed its wish to take on all the community facilities. 
 
It was regrettable that the development of the employment site had been put 
back from Phase 1 to Phase 2. 
 
He believed that the increase in housing numbers from 700 to 800 was entirely 
consistent with the JCS. 
 
The reduction of the speed limit along the B2149 and the addition of crossing 
points were welcome.  He was pleased to see the pedestrian and cycling routes 
across the motorway to Morrisons and Horndean Technology College had been 
retained. 
 
Retaining as much of the hedgerows along the B2149 as possible had been a 
strong desire of the local people throughout and shared the SDNPA’s desire to 
see only minimum removal consistent with safety. 
 
He was pleased that Horndean Parish Council believed that its objections had 
been either dealt with, conditioned or were for discussion at the reserved 
matters stage. 
 
He saw no reason to refuse outline permission. 
 
The Chairman invited Cllr Johnson, a local ward councillor, to speak. 
 
He referred to page 212 of the report where Rowlands Castle Parish Council 
highlighted the lack of reliable data.  This was emphasised by Hampshire 
Highways in their conclusion where there were still matters to be addressed on 
which they sought further information relating to traffic and highway issues. 
 
He clarified that Rowlands Caste railway station was around 8KM from the site, 
not 3KM as suggested on page 149 of the report.  This questioned the 

Page 24



  7 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

feasibility of people walking or cycling to Rowlands Castle station which had no 
scope for expansion to the parking facilities there. 
 
Finally, the double mini roundabout in Rowlands Castle had a financial 
contribution of £482K yet Havant Borough Council’s Local Plan Final Transport 
Assessment gave an indicative cost of £1.8m for re-engineering the 
roundabouts.  Where would the balance of this money come from? 
 
The highway officer said that a scheme had been identified through the 
emerging Havant Local Plan and that this site was proposing a proportional 
financial contribution towards this. 
 
The committee debated the application. 
 
Currently, there was no coherent layout in the village and this application would 
overcome piecemeal development in Horndean.  Members also welcomed the 
amount of affordable housing proposed.  It was acknowledged that the previous 
outline permission had lapsed, the site was in the Local Plan and local 
residents had been consulted and supported this site. 
 
It was felt that there were still outstanding traffic matters and that Rowlands 
Castle Parish Council’s concerns had come across clearly that they did not feel 
that the traffic surveys were clear and had not been properly researched.  The 
Hampshire Highways officer confirmed that the Highways Authority were 
content that the applicant had robustly assessed their impact on the highway. 
 
The committee sought a condition that only those hedges that were required to 
meet highways visibility splays were removed and no more.  The Principal 
Planning Officer said that informative 11 specifically referred to hedgerow loss 
and was very clear that removal of hedgerow was in order to achieve sight lines 
only and removal beyond this would need robust justification at reserved 
matters stage.  In the meantime, should any hedging be removed, it would be 
subject to enforcement action.  The officer also said that it was covered under 
the Hedgerow Regulations. 
 
Some members of the committee remained concerned that the £201K that 
would be going towards infrastructure for Rowlands Castle railway station and 
urged HCC to reconsider this.  In response, the Hampshire Highways officer 
said that once the money had been secured, their Transport Planning Team 
would look to explore further infrastructure.  However, it could be open to 
discussion with the applicant as to whether the wording be altered so that it did 
not just include Rowlands Castle train station, but to also include access to 
others within the area. 
 
The committee voted on the officer’s recommendation for outline permission. 
 
Following the vote, the recommendation was declared CARRIED, 13 
Councillors voting FOR outline permission, no Councillors voting AGAINST 
outline permission and no Councillors ABSTAINING from voting. 
 

 Page 25



  8 
Planning Committee 

(11.6.20) 
 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 7.49 pm 

 
 

………………… 
Chairman 

Page 26



Annex A 
11 June 2020 
Planning Committee 
 
Supplementary Matters to be considered as part of Planning Officer's Report on 
Planning Applications. 
 

S1 Item 01 

55562/005/OUT 

Development Land East of Horndean, 
Rowlands Castle Road, Horndean, 
Waterlooville 

 
CORRECTIONS 
 
The omission in error of Councillor M Johnson to the listed Ward Councillors at the 
head of the report. 

 
Correction to the report on page 45 where it states there are regular bus services to 
Portsmouth and Alton – this should read Portsmouth and Petersfield as the service 
from Horndean now terminates at Petersfield and does not continue to Alton. 
 
FURTHER REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Letter of representation received from Havant Hockey Club expressing an interest in 
the proposed pitch within the site. 
 
Letter of representation from Mr D J Lee on behalf of Horndean Protection Group 
raising the following planning matters: 
 

 The development is contrary to policy 

 Impact on the rural character and South Downs National Park 

 Traffic generation from the development 
 
 

 

Page 9

Minute Item 182.

Page 27



 
Part 1 

 
EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Applications determined by the  

Council as the Local Planning Authority 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

11 June 2020 
 

 

PROPOSAL Outline planning application with all matters reserved, 
except the means of access to the highway network 
(junction arrangements) and associated highway 
improvements, for the demolition of existing buildings 
and the residential-led (C3) mixed-use development of 
the site with up to 800 dwellings, up to 2ha of 
employment land (uses B1 and B2), a Local Centre 
(including: local retail (food and non-food A1); financial 
and professional services (A2); restaurants, cafés, and 
drinking establishments (A3 and A4), hot food 
takeaways (A5), together with a primary school (D1) and 
community facilities (D2)), informal and formal open 
space, allotments, and acoustic bunds, together with 
associated drainage, utilities and all other associated 
and necessary infrastructure (additional information 
and amended plans received 31/07/19, 06/09/19, 
26/09/19, 21/10/19, 04/03/20, 04/05/20, and 10/06/20) 

LOCATION: Development Land East of Horndean, Rowlands Castle 
Road, Horndean, Waterlooville 

REFERENCE 
NO: 

55562/005/OUT/SaH  

 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 10

Minute Item 185.

Page 28



 

A. the solicitor to the Council be authorised to draw up a Section 106 legal agreement 
and; 
 
B. provided that by October 2020 all relevant parties enter into the Section 106 agreement 
with the Council to secure: 
 
i. employment and training package, and delivery of employment allocated land on site (no 
later than phase 2) and provision of road connection to employment land boundary via Dell 
Piece East / Havant Road roundabout of adoptable standard; 
 
ii. Transport contribution to be used towards highway improvement measures, improvements 
to sustainable modes of transport, and other measures that provide direct benefit to the site.  
 
iv. Provision of a 1.2ha site for a school on-site  
 
v. Provision of structural planting early in the development and future maintenance and 
management 
 
vi. Provision, management and maintenance of sports facilities, public open space and 
allotments; 
 
vii. Provision, management and maintenance of surface water drainage system (including 
SUDs) and foul drainage system; 
 
viii. Provision, management and maintenance in perpetuity of landscape planting and ecology 
buffers; 
 
ix. Matters of general management and maintenance in perpetuity of other common areas 
including of the access and estate roads; 
 
x. Provision of 40% affordable housing and tenure split for affordable housing, stipulating 30% 
intermediate (shared ownership) and 70% affordable rent; 
 
xi. Occupancy criteria stipulating a cascade for occupancy of affordable rent units within the 
settlement, then adjoining parishes and then wider to the District; 
 
xii. A review of the provision of the Affordable Housing Supply, mix and allocation prior to the 
commencement of each phase of the development; 
 
xv. Community project worker contribution  
 
then the Director of Regeneration and Place be authorised to: 
 

a) Make minor changes to conditions, as necessary, with agreement of Chairman and 
Ward Councillors, and 

b) grant OUTLINE PERMISSION subject to the following conditions. 

Page 11Page 29



 
However, in the event that a satisfactory S106 agreement to secure points i. to xv. above is 
not completed by October 2020, then permission will be refused under the Councils adopted 
scheme of delegation, unless an extension of time is agreed by Chairman of this Committee. 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall commence within five years of the date 

of consent or before the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the 
first reserved matter, whichever is the latter, and the remainder of the 
development shall be begun not later than two years from the final approval of 
the last reserved matters to be approved.  
 
Application for the approval of the first reserved matters shall be made to the 
Local Planning Authority before the expiration of two years from the date of this 
permission. 
 
Application for approval of all reserved matters shall be made to the Local 
Planning Authority within seven years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason - To comply with the provisions of Section 92(2) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act, as amended by Section 51(1)(a) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The submission of all reserved matters and the implementation of the 
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved drawings: 
 

RG- M_01 rev F - Site location plan 
RG -M- 22 rev G - Land use and access parameter plan 
RG-M-23 rev F - Trees and buildings parameter plan 
VD18678-100- 01J - General Arrangement sheet 1 of 7 
VD18678/ 100- 02H - General Arrangement sheet 2 of 7 
VD18678/ 100- 03F - General Arrangement sheet 3 of 7 
VD18678/ 100- 04G - General Arrangement sheet 4 of 7 
VD18678/ 100- 05G - General Arrangement sheet 5 of 7 
VD18678/ 100- 06G - General Arrangement sheet 6 of 7 
VD18678-100- 07C - General Arrangement sheet 7 of 7 
Application Form  
CIL Form Assumption of Liability 
Ground Condition Assessment and Ground Investigation Report 
Agricultural Land Classification and Soil Resources 
Review of Minerals Safeguarding 
Information for Habitats Regulations Assessment 
Sustainability Statement 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment & Tree Report 
Utilities Assessment  
Planning Supporting Statement 
Statement of Community Involvement 
Design and Access Statement 

Page 12Page 30



Environmental Statement Volume 1 of 4 
Environmental Statement Volume 2 of 4 
Environmental Statement Volume 3 of 4 
Environmental Statement Volume 4 of 4 
Factual Report 
01HX01 sheet 1 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 2 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 3 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 4 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 5 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 6 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 7 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 8 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX01 sheet 9 of 9 - Site Survey 
01HX02 - Site Survey 
BL021984-01 Sheet 1 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 2 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 3 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 4 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 5 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 6 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 7 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 8 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 9 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 10 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 11 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 12 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 13 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan 
BL021984-01 Sheet 14 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan  
BL021984-01 Sheet 15 of 15 -  Tree Reference Plan 
Technical Response to Ecology Consultees (July 2019) by Ecological 
Planning and Research Ltd 
Post-Application Technical Submission by White Peak Planning Ltd (July 
2019) 
Further Post-Application Response to Issues Raised by Consultees by 
Terence O'Rourke Ltd (February 2020) 
 
Reason - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development 
 

3 Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme detailing the phasing, 
and any sub- phasing, of the construction of the development shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
Reason - To secure the phasing of, and an orderly pattern of development and 
help manage and monitor the reserved matters and conditions related to this. 
 
 

Page 13Page 31



4 Prior to the commencement of development in any phase or sub-phase, plans 
and particulars showing the detailed proposals for the following aspects of the 
development of the individual phase, where appropriate, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall 
comprise the 'reserved matters' and shall be submitted within the time 
constraints referred to in Condition 1 and comprise:- 
 
a) Access: meaning the accessibility within the site, for vehicles, cycles and 
pedestrians in terms of the positioning and treatment of access and 
circulation routes and how these fit into the surrounding access network; 
 
b) Appearance: meaning the aspects of any building or place within the 
development which determine the visual impression the building or place 
makes, including the external built form of the development, its architecture, 
materials, decoration, lighting, colour and texture; 
 
c) Landscaping: meaning the treatment of land (other than buildings) for 
the purpose of enhancing or protecting the amenities of the site and the 
area/wider context in which it is situated (including the adjacent South Downs 
National Park) and includes screening by fences, walls or other means, the 
planting of trees, hedges, shrubs or grass, the formation of banks, terraces or 
other earthworks, the laying out or provision of gardens, courts or squares, water 
features, sculpture, or public art, and the provision of other amenity features and 
includes strategic landscaping, including landscaping along the boundary with 
the South Downs National Park; 
 
d) Layout: meaning the way in which buildings, routes and open spaces 
within the development are provided, situated and orientated in relation to each 
other and to buildings and spaces outside the development including 
connectivity with the South Downs National Park and Havant Thicket; 
 
e) Scale: meaning the height, width and length of each building proposed 
within the development in relation to its surroundings; 
 
The reserved matters application/s shall also include the following detail and 
information:  
 
f) A site survey showing the position, type and spread of all existing trees 
on the site and a schedule detailing the size and a schedule detailing the size 
and physical condition of each tree and, where appropriate, the steps to be 
taken to bring the tree(s) to be retained to a satisfactory condition and also 
details of any proposals for the felling, lopping, topping or up-rooting of any tree; 
 
g) Arrangements to be made for the future maintenance of landscaped and other 
open areas; 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14Page 32



h) Details of the existing and proposed ground levels, proposed finished floor 
levels, levels of any paths, drives, garages and parking areas and the proposed 
completed height of the development and any retaining walls. The details shall 
clearly identify the relationship of the proposed ground levels and proposed 
completed height with adjacent buildings and any trees (including protected 
trees) to be retained.  
 
i) The provision to be made for the parking, turning, loading and unloading of 
vehicles; 
 
j) Details of a scheme for foul and surface water drainage to include the 
layout of foul sewers and water drains; 
k) The provision of street lighting, street furniture, lighting (including security 
lighting), bollards etc; 
 
l) The provision to be made for the storage and removal of refuse from each part 
of the development; 
 
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason - To comply with Article 5 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and to ensure 
that there is a satisfactory relationship between the new development and 
adjacent buildings, retained (including protected) trees and public areas.  
 

5 The relevant reserved matters application(s) shall identify all areas of 
employment land that are to be used to store potentially polluting material, or 
vehicles. Such areas must be underlain by an impermeable surface which 
prevents drips or spills infiltrating into the ground. The surface must be designed 
to ensure that all run off from such areas drains efficiently via appropriately sized 
interceptors before entering the site surface water collection system. 
 
The scheme shall include details of impermeable surfacing and how the 
interceptors will be maintained and managed after completion. Chemicals and 
hydrocarbons must be stored within a bunded area capable of containing 110% 
of the capacity stored. The scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority before works commence on each relevant phase 
or sub-phase.  
 
The works shall be implemented fully in accordance with the approved prior to 
the occupation of development in that phase or sub-phase. 
 
Reason - The site lies within the Groundwater Source Protection Zone 1 for the 
Havant and Bedhampton Springs, a public drinking water supply.  
 
Solution features and karstic fissures connected to the Havant & Bedhampton 
Springs are known to be present in this area which increases the risk of 
pollutants entering groundwater and travelling rapidly without attenuation to 
pollute the public drinking water supply. 
 
 

Page 15Page 33



The purpose of incorporating interceptors in to the design is to capture any 
hydrocarbons and other contaminants to break the pollutant chain. 
 

6 Prior to occupation of any phase or sub-phase of development where external 
building services and plant is to be provided, an assessment following the 
guidance contained in BS 4142:2014 'methods for rating and assessing 
industrial and commercial sound' shall be carried out. This assessment shall be 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority at the reserved 
matters stage of the relevant phase or sub-phase, to determine and minimise 
noise Impacts to sensitive receptors nearby from these noise sources.  
 
Development in the phase or sub-phase shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
 
Reason - To comply with the requirements of Policy CP27 of the East 
Hampshire Core Strategy and to ensure that potential adverse noise impacts are 
mitigated and reduced to a minimum and significant adverse impacts on health 
and quality of life are avoided, in accordance with paragraph 180 of the NPPF, 
2019. 
 

7 Prior to the commencement of development within any phase or sub-phase of 
development, an assessment of site suitability for that phase or sub-phase shall 
be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority to determine the 
exact acoustic specifications of mitigation measures required, to ensure a 
suitable sound climate internally and externally.  
 
The assessment shall only be required for areas identified in Technical Appendix 
I Noise and Vibration of the Environmental Statement, December 2018 as 
requiring mitigation. 
 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason - To ensure the provision of a satisfactory residential environment for 
future residents in accordance with Policy CP27 of the East Hampshire Core 
Strategy and paragraphs 170 and 180 of the NPPF, 2019. 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission. 
 

8 Prior to the commencement of development within any phase or sub-phase of 
development, details of provision for the storage and recycling of refuse for that 
phase or sub-phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such provision shall be made/constructed prior to the first 
occupation of the building(s) in that phase or sub-phase and shall thereafter be 
made permanently available for the occupants of the building(s) in that phase or 
sub-phase.  
 
Reason - To preserve the residential and visual amenities of the locality, having 
regard to Policy CP24 of the East Hampshire Core Strategy, together with the 
requirements of paragraphs 8, 127 and 170 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019.  

Page 16Page 34



 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission. 
 

9 Prior to the commencement of development within any phase or sub-phase, 
including site clearance, a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) 
for that phase or sub-phase, which shall reflect the submitted Environmental 
Statement, December 2018, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include (but not be limited to): 
 
• specifications for construction timing and logistics including a programme for 
demolition and construction work, construction traffic management, including 
details of contractor parking, access and egress of plant and machinery and 
hours of construction and deliveries and delivery routing; 
• the location of temporary site buildings, construction compound(s) and storage 
of plant, machinery, construction materials and any spoil 
 
• details of provision for storage, collection and disposal of rubbish and 
recycling from the development during construction 
 
• details of the re-use of on-site materials and spoil arising from site clearance, 
demolition and construction 
 
•specific measures to avoid or mitigate damage and disturbance to important 
species and habitats, and the wider area  
 
• measures to control surface water runoff 
 
• details of any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals associated with 
this development, or phase of development, shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include: 
 
o secondary containment that is impermeable to both the oil, fuel or chemical 
and water, with no opening used to drain the system. 
 
o a minimum volume of secondary containment of at least equivalent to the 
capacity of the tank plus 10% and if there is more than one tank in the 
secondary containment 
the capacity of the containment should be at least the capacity of the largest 
tank plus 10% or 25% of the total tank capacity, whichever is greatest. 
 
o all fill points, vents, gauges and sight gauge located within the secondary 
containment. 
 
o associated above ground pipework protected from accidental damage. 
 
o all fill points and tank vent pipe outlets designed to discharge downwards into 
the bund. 
 
 

Page 17Page 35



o Plant and machinery to be inspected daily to check for leaks and faulty 
equipment; 
 
o Training and awareness of Contractors to incorporate pollution 
prevention and spill response procedures 
 
• pollution prevention measures including reporting mechanisms in respect of 
incidence which may result in pollution (including details of Environment Agency 
Incident Hotline and contact details of the Catchment Management Team at 
Portsmouth Water) 
 
Details of plant fuelling, identifying where will it occur and how it will be 
contained; 
 
• measures to control the emission of dust, noise and vibration. (This shall 
include a detailed construction noise assessment. It shall also include mitigation 
measures to be 
applied during the demolition and construction process to minimise disturbance 
to sensitive receptors, which shall be identified as part of the assessment). Any 
approved mitigation measures should be reviewed at an agreed frequency and 
any further mitigation required mitigation undertaken; 
 
• specific measures to avoid or mitigate damage and disturbance to important 
species and habitats 
 
• details for the protection of pedestrian routes including public rights of way 
during construction 
 
• details of site registration under the Considerate Contractors scheme 
 
Demolition and construction shall take place in accordance with the approved 
CEMP for that phase or sub-phase, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason - In order that the Planning Authority can properly consider the effect of 
the works on the amenity of the locality, to safeguard the amenities of occupiers 
of nearby properties and the environmental amenities of the immediate locality in 
accordance with Policy CP27 of the East Hampshire Core Strategy 2014 and 
paragraph 180 of the NPPF, 2019, to protect biodiversity in accordance with the 
Conservation Regulations 2017, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act 
(2006), NPPF and with Policy CP21 of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: 
Joint Core Strategy, and to ensure that the any storage, of oils, fuels or 
chemicals does not harm groundwater resources in line with Policy CP26 of the 
East Hampshire Core Strategy and paragraph 170 of the NPPF.   
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such 
details need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.  
 
 
 

Page 18Page 36



10 Prior to the commencement of development within any phase or sub-phase a 
scheme shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, demonstrating that the built development hereby permitted in that 
phase or sub-phase incorporates measures that provide at least 10% of energy 
demand from decentralised and renewable or low carbon energy sources.  
 
Prior to each plot being occupied on any phase or sub-phase of the 
development, a verification report and completion certificate shall be submitted 
in writing to the Local Planning Authority confirming that the built development 
hereby permitted has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.  
 
The developer shall nominate a competent person for the purpose of assessing 
and providing the above required report and certificate to confirm that the 
completed works incorporate such measures as to provide these requirements.  
The measures shall thereafter be retained and maintained to the agreed 
specification for the lifetime of the development. 
Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates necessary mitigation and 
adaptation measures with regard to climate change in accordance with Policy 
CP24 of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy and 
paragraphs 150 and 153 of the NPPF. 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details relate to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of 
the planning permission. 
 

11 Prior to the commencement of development within any phase or sub-phase, a 
detailed Landscape and Ecological Enhancement, Mitigation and Management 
Strategy shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority.  The strategy for that phase or sub-phase shall be in accordance with 
the outline ecological mitigation and enhancement measures detailed within the 
Environmental Statement (Terence O'Rourke, December 2018), Environmental 
Statement Technical Appendix C (December 2018) and Technical Response 
(EPR, July 2019) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The Strategy shall include (but not be limited to):  
 
• details of all habitat- and species-related avoidance and mitigation 
measures (e.g. timings, methods, responsibilities);  
 
• plans of, and details describing, all habitat impacts and measures to 
compensate impacts (e.g. location, methods of establishment, responsibilities, 
care and maintenance);  
 
• measures to achieve a biodiversity net gain through a range of 
enhancement measures including the provision of bat boxes, starling, swallow 
and house sparrow nest boxes, stag beetle loggeries, deculvert the stream 
running through the northern parcel and seek opportunities for the establishment 
of locally appropriate semi-natural wetland communities within proposed blue 
infrastructure features.; 
 
 

Page 19Page 37



• plans and details of all habitat and species-related enhancement 
measures (e.g. location, methods, responsibilities, care and maintenance); 
 
• a programme of ongoing ecological monitoring; 
 
• a strategy for managing access to important woodland habitats within the 
to minimise disturbance of protected species following occupation of any part of 
the development 
 
Reason – To ensure that the natural environment and any protected species 
which occupy the site are protected in accordance with the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as 
amended), the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, 
paragraph 175 of the NPPF, Policy CP21 of the East Hampshire District Local 
Plan: Joint Core Strategy and Policy HN1 of the East Hampshire District Local 
Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations DPD.  
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such 
details need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.  
 

12 Prior to the commencement of development within any phase or sub-phase, 
which shall include any felling of trees, demolition, or other alteration of the 
existing condition of the site at the date of this permission, the following 
information related to that phase or sub-phase shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority:-   
 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and scaled Tree Removal/Retention Plan 
linked to a proposed layout and a detailed Arboricultural Method Statement, 
which shall include the exact location, assessment of condition and size by stem 
diameter, species and accurate crown spread of all trees, over 100mm stem 
diameter at 1.5 metres above existing adjacent ground level, on the site and 
indicating those trees proposed to be felled and the root protection areas and 
positions and details of protection measures to be employed during building 
operations; 
 
details of proposed hard surfaced areas and service routes within the root 
protection areas;  
 
existing and final intended levels across the site adjacent to any existing tree 
group; 
 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason - To safeguard existing trees and ensure the enhancement of the 
development, through their retention.  by the retention of natural features in 
accordance with Policy CP20 of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint 
Core Strategy. 
 
 
 

Page 20Page 38



It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such 
details need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.  
 

13 Prior to the commencement of development within any phase or sub-phase plan, 
a lighting strategy for that phase or sub-phase shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The lighting strategy shall 
reflect the mitigation measures set out in chapter 9 of the Environmental 
Statement paragraph 9.49. The approved scheme shall be implemented and 
thereafter maintained in accordance with the approved scheme.  
 
Reason - In the interests of the residential amenity of the area, to ensure a 
quality development in accordance with Policies CP27 and CP29 of the East 
Hampshire Core Strategy and to take account of protected species in 
accordance with Policy CP21 of the East Hampshire Core strategy. 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission.  
 

14 Prior to the commencement of any phase or sub-phase of the development, a 
programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written brief, 
specification and timetable for a scheme of investigation for that phase or sub-
phase of development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. It shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with 
the approved details.  
Following completion of the archaeological fieldwork for that phase or sub-phase 
a report shall be produced in accordance with the further written scheme 
including, where appropriate, post-excavation assessment, specialist analysis 
and reports, publication and public engagement, and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 
Reason – To contribute to our knowledge and understanding of our past by 
ensuring that opportunities are taken to capture evidence from the historic 
environment and to make this publicly available.  
 
To ensure that an historic record is made of the site given it is potentially of 
archaeological significance and in accordance with Policy CP30 of the East 
Hampshire Core Strategy 2014 and paragraph 199 of the NPPF, 2019. 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission.  
 

15 Prior to the commencement of any phase or sub-phase of development, a 
detailed surface water drainage scheme for that phase or sub-phase, based on 
the principles within the Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy ref: A231- 
R002B (July 2019) and Preliminary Drainage Zoning Plan ref: TN003 (Technical 
Appendix K of Environmental Statement), shall be submitted and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted details should include:  
 

Page 21Page 39



a. A technical summary highlighting any changes to the design from that within 
the approved Flood Risk Assessment. 
 
b. Infiltration test results undertaken in accordance with BRE365 and providing a 
representative assessment of those locations where infiltration features are 
proposed  
 
c. Detailed drainage plans to include type, layout and dimensions of drainage 
features including references to link to the drainage calculations.  
 
d. Detailed drainage calculations to demonstrate existing runoff rates are not 
exceeded and there is sufficient attenuation for storm events up to and including 
1:100 + climate change. 
 
e. Evidence that urban creep has been included within the calculations. 
 
f. Confirmation that sufficient water quality measures have been included to 
satisfy the methodology in the Ciria SuDS Manual C753. g. Exceedance plans 
demonstrating the flow paths and areas of ponding in the event of blockages or 
storms exceeding design criteria.  
 
The phase or sub-phase of development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
 
Reason - To ensure that any proposed surface water drainage scheme does not 
increase flood risk elsewhere in accordance with Policy CP25 of the East 
Hampshire Core Strategy and paragraph 163 of the NPPF, 2019  
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission. 
 

16 Prior to the commencement of any phase or sub- phase of development, details 
demonstrating how all roads and parking areas within that phase or sub-phase 
will be carefully constructed to ensure that all drainage discharges through 
appropriately sized interceptors, before passing in to the surface water drainage 
system shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The 
scheme shall be designed to ensure that run off does not pose any potential risk 
to groundwater quality by way of contamination or adverse effect on turbidity. 
The scheme shall include details of how the interceptors will be maintained and 
managed after completion.  
 
The works shall be implemented fully in accordance with the approved details 
before the development in that phase or sub-phase is occupied. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22Page 40



Reason -The site lies within the groundwater Source Protection Zone 1 for the 
Havant and Bedhampton Springs, a public drinking water supply. Solution 
features and karstic fissures connected to the Havant & Bedhampton Springs 
are known to be present in this area which increases the risk of pollutants 
entering groundwater and travelling rapidly without attenuation to pollute the 
public water supply. The purpose of incorporating interceptors in to the design is 
to capture any hydrocarbons and other contaminants to break the pollutant 
chain. 
 
To accord with Policy CP26 of the East Hampshire Core Strategy  
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such 
details need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.   
 

17 Prior to the commencement of any phase or sub-phase of development, a 
scheme to dispose of foul water for that phase or sub-phase shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The scheme shall also include but not be limited to: 
 
• A timetable for implementation of the approved scheme 
 
• Details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed after 
completion. 
 
• Details of the sewage pipe work layout and specifications. 
 
Note: The use of borehole soakaways will not be accepted at this site. 
 
The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to 
any part of the development in that phase or sub-phase being occupied and 
shall be retained thereafter. 
 
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for foul drainage and to ensure that any 
foul water drainage arrangements do not harm groundwater resources in line 
with paragraph 170 of the NPPF. 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such 
details need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.   
 

18 Prior to the commencement of any phase or sub-phase of development, the 
following details to deal with the risks associated with contamination of that 
phase or sub-phase, shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local 
planning authority in consultation with the Environment Agency and Portsmouth 
Water: 
 
(a)   a scheme outlining a site investigation and risk assessments designed to 
assess the nature and extent of any contamination on that phase or sub-phase.  
 
 

Page 23Page 41



(b)   a written report of the findings which includes, a description of the extent, 
scale and nature of contamination, an assessment of all potential risks to known 
receptors, an update of the conceptual site model (devised in the desktop 
study), identification of all pollutant linkages and unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and identified as unnecessary in the 
written report, an appraisal of remediation options and proposal of the preferred 
option(s) identified as appropriate for the type of contamination found on that 
phase or sub-phase. and (unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority) 
 
c) Testing for common contaminants during validation of site won material used 
for topsoil.  Sampling to be undertaken at a rate of one sample per 250m3. Any 
material imported to the site should also be tested for contaminants at a rate of 
one sample per 100m3; 
 
*Testing is particularly relevant in the areas of made ground eg Area C- the 
Contractors 
compound. 
 
(c). Use of a 'competent person' as a watching brief during development to 
identify 
unsuspecting contamination;  
 
(d)   a detailed remediation scheme designed to bring that phase or sub-phase 
to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to 
human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical 
environment. The scheme should include all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works, site 
management procedures and a verification plan outlining details of the data to 
be collected in order to demonstrate the completion of the remediation works 
and any arrangements for the continued monitoring of identified pollutant 
linkages. 
 
The above reports should be completed by a competent person, as stipulated in 
the National Planning Policy Framework, Annex 2, and site works should be 
undertaken in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and 
BS10175:2011 Investigation of potentially contaminated sites – Code of practice. 
 
Reason - The site lies within the groundwater Source Protection Zone 1 for the 
Havant and Bedhampton Springs and to ensure that risks from land 
contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are 
minimised, together with those to controlled waters, drinking water supplies, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be 
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Policies CP26 & CP27 of the Joint Core 
Strategy 2014 and paragraphs 109 and 121 of the NPPF.    
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission.  

Page 24Page 42



 
19 Prior to the commencement of any phase or sub-phase of development, a 

remediation strategy to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the 
that phase or sub-phase shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. This strategy will include the following components: 
 
A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: 
 
- all previous uses 
- potential contaminants associated with those uses 
- a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and 
receptors 
- potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the phase or sub-
phase 
 
2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed 
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off-
site. 
 
3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred 
to in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy 
giving full details of the remediation measures required and how they are to be 
undertaken. 
 
4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are 
complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. 
 
Any changes to these components require the written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
The scheme for each phase or sub-phase shall be implemented as approved. 
 
Reason - To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at 
unacceptable risk from/adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water 
pollution in line with paragraph 170 of the NPPF. 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission. 
 

20 Prior to the commencement of development, or development in any phase or 
sub-phase, where site won material is to be utilised, it shall be demonstrated to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority through the submission and 
approval of a verification report that the material to be used as topsoil is suitable 
for its intended use. Validation testing for common contaminants at a rate of one 
sample per 250m3 for site won material.  
 
 
 

Page 25Page 43



Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and 
other offsite.  
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission. 
 

21 No drainage shall be infiltrated to ground within a 10m stand-off zone 
surrounding any known solution feature with a surface expression (e.g. surface 
depression or sinkhole) or where solution features (without surface expression) 
are encountered during the works. In addition, building structures and 
infrastructure positions will also be located, where possible, to avoid such 
solution features, subject to detailed investigation, assessment and development 
of appropriate mitigation measures. A development design strategy for mitigating 
the hazards of solution features on buildings and infrastructure shall be prepared 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the 
commencement of development or any phase or sub-phase of development. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
 
Reason - Paragraph 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 
states that planning policies and decisions should also ensure that the site is 
suitable for its new use taking account of ground conditions and land instability, 
including from natural hazards or former activities such as mining, pollution 
arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation including land 
remediation or impacts on the natural environment arising from that remediation. 
 
Solution features can create zones of instability that provide a direct connection 
to the aquifer. Such features in this area have been shown to provide rapid 
transmission pathways for pollutants direct to the springs at Havant & 
Bedhampton. As a result, a precautionary approach to development is needed to 
protect this important public drinking water supply. 
 
To ensure that any proposed drainage works, do not harm water resources in 
accordance with Policy CP26 of the East Hampshire Core Strategy and 
paragraph 170 of the NPPF.  
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission. 
 

22 Each dwelling shall comply with the Building Regulations Optional requirement 
of a maximum water use of 110 litres per person per day.  
Reason - In the interests of preserving water quality and resources and to 
protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats & Species 
Regulations 2017 
 
 
 
 

Page 26Page 44



23 Before any phase of the development is occupied or used a verification 
report demonstrating the effectiveness of the remediation works undertaken, a 
completion certificate provided by the agreed competent person, confirming the 
approved remediation scheme has been implemented in full, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing, by the local planning authority in consultation with the 
Environment Agency and Portsmouth Water.  
 
The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in 
accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site 
remediation criteria have been met. 
 
The verification report and completion certificate shall be submitted in 
accordance with the approved scheme and undertaken by a competent person 
in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11 
 
Reason - To confirm that remediation has been carried out in accordance with 
the remedial strategy. To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future 
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, drinking water supplies, property and ecological systems, and 
to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable 
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Policies CP26 & CP27 of the Joint Core Strategy 2014 and paragraphs 109 and 
121 of the NPPF. 
 

24 If, during development, or a phase or sub-phase of development, contamination 
not previously identified is found to be present at the site then the local planning 
authority must be notified immediately.  
 
No further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local 
planning authority) shall be undertaken in that phase or sub-phase until a 
remediation strategy detailing how this contamination will be dealt with has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved before development in 
that phase or sub-phase recommences. 
 
Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to Controlled 
Waters, drinking water supplies, property and ecological systems, and to ensure 
that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
To ensure that the development does not contribute to, is not put at 
unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of pollution 
from previously unidentified contamination sources at the development site in 
accordance with Policies CP26 and CP27 of the Joint Core Strategy and 
paragraph 170 of the NPPF. 
 
 
 
 

Page 27Page 45



25 No piling or any other foundation construction using penetrative methods shall 
be carried out other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
If such construction methods are proposed to be used, details shall first be 
submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority, prior to 
the commencement of development or any agreed phase or sub-phase of 
development. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Note: If piling or other penetrative measures were to be approved in lower risk 
areas of the site a detailed method statement must be submitted to, and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority before such works commence. The 
method statement should detail the equipment, methodology, grout, control 
measures and monitoring that will be implemented to ensure there is no 
increased risk to controlled waters or drinking water supplies. 
 
Reason - The site lies within the groundwater Source Protection Zone 1 for the 
Havant and Bedhampton Springs, a public drinking water supply. Solution 
features and karstic fissures connected to the Havant & Bedhampton Springs 
are known to be present in this area which increases the risk of pollutants 
entering groundwater rapidly without attenuation and to ensure that any 
proposed piling or deep foundation using penetrative methods, does not harm 
groundwater resources in line with Policy CP26 of the East Hampshire Core 
Strategy, paragraph 170 of the NPPF, and the Environment Agency's position 
statement 'N8 - Physical disturbance of aquifers in a SPZ1' set 
out in the document 'The Environment Agency's approach to groundwater 
protection' 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/groundwater-protection-
positionstatements). 
 
Piling or any other foundation construction methods using penetrative methods 
could allow hazardous substances and non-hazardous pollutants to enter 
groundwater by for example, mobilising contamination and creating preferential 
pathways. Thus, it should be demonstrated that any proposed piling; 
 
a. Will not result in contamination of groundwater.  
b. Nor any increased risk to drinking water supplies (including turbidity). 
c. Nor deterioration in the transmissivity of the aquifer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28Page 46



26 Prior to the commencement of any phase or sub-phase of development full 
details of proposed below ground engineering works including land/solution 
feature stabilisation measures for that phase or sub-phase, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Those works shall be 
designed based upon a comprehensive assessment of the hydrological and 
hydrogeological context of the development, informed by detailed geophysical 
and ground investigations including the identification of the location of any 
solution feature that may act as a pathway for pollutants to reach groundwater. 
The works shall be designed and carried out in such a way as to ensure that 
they do not pose any potential risk to ground water quality, or drinking water 
supplies, by way of contamination or adverse effect on turbidity. The works shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the 
development, or development of that phase or sub-phase is occupied. 
 
Details shall also be provided in any phase or sub-phase of the measures that 
will be employed to prevent trenches across permeable ground in high, very high 
and extreme vulnerability areas, creating a new pathway for water drainage in to 
the aquifer. These details shall be submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority. The works shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 
approved details before the development of that phase or sub-phase is 
occupied. 
 
Reason - To ensure that any proposed below ground engineering works, 
including land/solution feature stabilisation measures, do not harm groundwater 
resources in line with Policy CP26 of the East Hampshire Core Strategy, 
paragraph 170 of the NPPF and paragraph 178 of the NPPF which states that 
planning policies and decisions should also ensure that the site is suitable for its 
new use taking account of ground conditions and land instability, including from 
natural hazards or former activities such as mining, pollution arising from 
previous uses and any proposals for mitigation including land remediation or 
impacts on the natural environment arising from that remediation. 
 
Solution features can create zones of instability that provide a direct connection 
to the aquifer. Solution features in this area have been shown to provide rapid 
transmission pathways direct to the springs at Havant & Bedhampton. As a 
result, a precautionary approach to development is needed to protect the public 
water supply. 
 
These measures are required to ensure that new utility and other trenches do 
not significantly change the permeability of the ground, which could create new 
pathways for drainage of water in to the aquifer, this in turn would increase the 
pollution risk. 
 

27 No underground storage facilities and/or distribution infrastructure for 
hazardous substances (such as hydrocarbons) shall be constructed at the site. 
Underground storage facilities, pumping and/or distribution infrastructure for 
non-hazardous polluting substances (such as sewage) shall only be constructed 
at the site with appropriate engineering standards and controls, and having 
effective management standards in place, taking into account the location 
specific risks. 
 

Page 29Page 47



Should such storage facilities be required, details shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
development or any agreed phase or sub-phase of development. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason - To ensure that the any storage facilities, pumping or distribution 
infrastructure of non-hazardous polluting substances does not harm 
groundwater resources in line with 
paragraph 170 of the NPPF, and the Environment Agency's Position Statement 
D2 'Underground storage (and associated pipework)' as set out in the document 
'The Environment Agency's approach to groundwater protection' 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/groundwater-protection-
positionstatements). 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission.  
 

28 Prior to the commencement of development, or phase or sub-phase of 
development, details of the measures which will be undertaken to protect public 
sewers shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority for that phase or sub-phase. The development or phase or sub-phase 
of development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason - To ensure proper protection of public sewers in the interests of public 
health and the protection of groundwater in accordance with Policy CP26 of the 
East Hampshire Core Strategy. 
 
It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these 
details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 
go to the heart of the planning permission.  
 

29 Prior to first occupation of any dwelling, new occupiers shall be issued with a 
leaflet providing advice on the responsible enjoyment of natural heritage assets 
('Natural Heritage Information for Residents), the details of which shall have 
been first submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason – In the interests of the sustainable enjoyment and protection of 
biodiversity within the site.  
 

30 No development, or if a phasing plan has first been agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, no development of the individual phase, shall start on 
site until a scheme has been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority to demonstrate that all multi-residential and non-residential 
development with a floor space of over 500 sq m will achieve a BREEAM rating 
of not less than 'excellent'. 
 
Before any part of the non-residential development with a floor space of over 
500 sq m t is first occupied a verification report and completion certificate shall 
be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority confirming that the built 
development hereby permitted has been constructed in accordance with the 
approved scheme.  

Page 30Page 48



The developer shall nominate a competent person for the purpose of assessing 
and providing the above required report and certificate to confirm that the 
completed works incorporate such measures as to provide the required energy 
savings. 
 
The energy saving works set out in the above report shall thereafter be 
maintained so that the required energy saving is sustained at the certified level 
for the lifetime of the development.  
 
Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates necessary mitigation and 
adaptation measures with regard to climate change.  It is considered necessary 
for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details relate to the 
construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning 
permission. 
 

31 Prior to the occupation of the 100th dwelling details of a bus strategy, which 
shall include the provision to operate a bus service which serves the site 
between 0630 and 1900 on Monday to Saturdays, for the site shall be submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The details of the bus 
strategy shall include frequency details, hours of operation and routing. The 
100th dwelling shall not be occupied other than in accordance with the approved 
Bus Strategy.  
 
Reason – To ensure sustainable patterns of travel are promoted in accordance 
with Policy CP31 of the East Hampshire Core Strategy and paragraphs 102, 108 
and 111 of the NPPF, 2019. 
 

32 No access from Rowlands Castle Road shall be provided other than for use by 
public transport, pedestrians, cyclists, emergency vehicles, or for access to/from 
the allotments to be provided.  
Reason – In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety. 
 

33 Prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application, a Design Code 
document for the development shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority.  The Design Code document shall include the 
following details;  
 
(a) Principles for the built form of key character areas within the Site to be 
informed by local character, having particular regard to:  
 
building form and depth,  
roofscape, including ridge lines and pitches,  
building heights (in accordance with the parameters plan),  
building elements such as chimneys, eaves, openings (windows / doors) and 
porches,  
external materials,  
boundary treatment, and  
Parking principles (including cycle parking / storage).  
 
 
 

Page 31Page 49



(b) Principles for the detailed design of vehicular accesses from Havant Road 
and Rowlands Castle Road including landscaping, materials and surfacing and 
incorporating the principles within Manual for Streets.  
 
(c) Principles for hard and soft landscaping 
 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Design Code 
document, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason - To ensure a satisfactory design for the development, in the interests of 
the character and appearance of the area. 

 
 
Informative Notes to Applicant: 
 

1 All development shall be stopped immediately in the event that 
contamination not previously identified is found to be present on the 
development site and details of the contamination shall be reported 
immediately in writing to the Local Planning Authority.  To help ensure 
developers submit information to the standard expected by this Authority, 
Environmental Health has put together a leaflet entitled "Development on 
Potentially Contaminated Land", available as a download on the following 
East Hampshire District Council website: 
http://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/ContaminatedL
andGuide.pdf 
 
At the back of this document is a template for a Completion Certificate 
which can be used to document all site investigation work undertaken on 
site. A certificate of this nature is required to be submitted to the LPA 
before discharge of the final contaminated land condition. 
 

2 The developer is advised that any proposal to deliver a biodiversity net 
gain through enhancement measures providing bird and bat boxes in The 
Holt and Havant Thicket woodland could potentially conflict with the 
strategy Portsmouth Water have already discussed with the Forestry 
Commission of placing bird and bat boxes in Havant Thicket in relation to 
the reservoir project strategy.  It is advised that the developer's advisors 
take a collaborative approach and work with Portsmouth Water, Forestry 
Commission, Natural England and the LPA Ecologist to agree a robust 
strategy for such enhancements, which does not conflict with the 
reservoir project strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32Page 50



3 The developer is made aware that there must be no surface alterations to 
the right of way, nor should any work be carried out which affect its 
surface, without the prior permission of Hampshire Countryside Service 
as Highway Authority.  To carry out any such works without this 
permission would constitute an offence under s131 Highways Act 1980.  
In relation to this application a Highway Agreement with the Countryside 
Service would be required prior to commencement of development or 
vegetation clearance or works which might affect the surface of the Right 
of Way. The grant of planning permission is separate from any consents 
that may be required in relation to access and rights of way and that 
nothing should be done to stop up or divert the public right of way without 
following the due legal process Hampshire Countryside Service are 
currently unlikely to support an application to divert Footpath 54. 
 

4 The developer is made aware that Portsmouth Water has requested that 
details of proposed groundwater monitoring be provided at the detailed 
reserved matters stage. 
 

5 The developer is made aware that Southern Water has advised that 
discussions take place regarding the alignment of the construction and 
occupation of the development with the delivery by Southern Water of 
any sewerage network reinforcement required to ensure that adequate 
waste water network capacity is available to adequately drain the 
development. 
 

6 The developer is advised to contact the South Downs National Park 
Authority Dark Night Skies Ranger before the detailed design stage to 
discuss appropriate glazing and lighting for the development. 
 

7 Bats and their roosts are protected under the Conservation of Habitats 
and Species Regulations 2010 and birds' nests, when occupied or being 
built, receive legal protection under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 
(as amended). All work must stop immediately if evidence of bat or 
nesting bird presence (e.g. droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains, 
recent nesting materials), are encountered at any point during building 
demolition. Should this occur, further advice should be sought from 
Natural England and/or a professional ecologist. 
 

8 The development subject to this notice falls within a highlighted proximity 
of a mains gas pipe which is considered a major hazard.  
 
The applicant/ agent/ developer is strongly advised to contact the 
pipeline operator PRIOR to ANY works being undertaken pursuant to the 
permission granted/ confirmed by this notice.  
 
 

Page 33Page 51



Address is:  
Southern Gas Networks Plc  
SGN Plant Location Team 
95 Kilbirnie Street 
Glasgow 
G5 8JD 
Tel: 01414 184093 OR 0845 0703497 
Search online at:  
www.linesearchbeforeyoudig.co.uk  
SGN personnel will contact you accordingly. 
 

9 Sport England, in conjunction with Public Health England, has produced 
'Active Design' (October 2015), a guide to planning new developments 
that create the right environment to help people get more active, more 
often in the interests of health and wellbeing. The guidance sets out ten 
key principles for ensuring new developments incorporate opportunities 
for people to take part in sport and physical activity. The Active Design 
principles are aimed at contributing towards the Government's desire for 
the planning system to promote healthy communities through good urban 
design. Sport England would commend the use of the guidance in the 
master planning process for new residential developments. The 
document can be downloaded via the following link:  
 
http://www.sportengland.org/activedesign 
 

10 The developer is made aware that the proposed development site is 
located in a very sensitive area with regards to groundwater protection 
and our drinking water resources. It is in a Source Protection Zone One 
(SPZ1) and prone to solution features resulting in the potential for rapid 
movement of pollutants through the catchment. The site is also located in 
close proximity to the safeguarded site for provision of a new winter 
storage reservoir. 
 

11 The submitted plans do not grant permission for removal of hedging 
along Havant Road, other than to secure sightlines.  All other removal of 
hedging is subject to Reserved Matter approval of landscaping.  The 
applicant is requested to site new footways / cycleways behind existing 
roadside hedgerows, where this is possible. 
 

12 The applicant is advised that the development the subject of this outline 
consent is liable to the East Hampshire District CIL Charging Schedule 
which became a material planning consideration on 8th April 2016. On 
approval of the last reserved matter arising from this outline consent, this 
development will be liable to pay the Council's CIL upon commencement 
of development. For further information, please see the CIL pages online, 
here: 

Page 34Page 52



 
http://www.easthants.gov.uk/planning-policy/developers-contributions 
 

13 The applicant is requested to incorporate flush fitting solar panels into the 
roof design of the new buildings, as part of the energy saving measures 
secured through conditions 10 and 30 of this permission. 
 

14 The developer is made aware that this permission is subject to a 
Planning Obligation made under Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
14. In accordance with paragraphs 38 and 39 of the NPPF East 
Hampshire District Council (EHDC) takes a positive and proactive 
approach and works with applicants/agents on development proposals in 
a manner focused on solutions by: 
 
offering a pre-application advice service; 
updating applicant/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing 
of their application and where possible suggesting solutions. 
 
In this instance: 
 
The applicant was provided with pre-application advice; 
the applicant was updated of any issues and given the opportunity to 
address those issues raised. 

 
 

——————————————————————————————————————— 
 

Page 35Page 53



Representation from Horndean Protection Group 

Application 55562/005 - Objection. 

First application of 5 possible local sites for 2,500+ buildings & infrastructure with 5000+ 
daily new vehicle movements with unknown wide cumulative impacts. This is the start of 
widespread urbanisation of a local rural area without a combined EIA and HIA (Health -2017 
legislation) to meet best practise!?  No proper assessments for current or future pandemic 
sustainable physical separation and Climate Emergency.  
 
Planning policies - Design, appearance & materials. Effect on street/area.  

Development(s) do not: Promote true sustainable construction, energy and water 
conservation and renewable energy, or maximise previously developed land/buildings 
within existing built-up areas so as not to destroy natural open space CP2 (JCS 2014). NPPF 
presumption in favour of sustainable development is not achieved - no balanced outcome 
for economic, social, and environmental criteria (CP1).  No resource efficient housing and no 
low carbon economic growth delivery for  protection/enhancement of built/natural 
environment fundamental to the Local Plan (CP2).  Buildings & design standards plus layout 
do not contribute to local distinctiveness & sense of place sympathetic to setting to make a 
positive contribution to the overall appearance of area.  Instead, the planned density 
destroys the rural ambiance and transition to the tranquil National Park (CP29). It increases 
all levels of pollution (noise, light, and air quality (AQ) without net zero mitigation. AQ being 
the flip side of a Climate Change accelerant. 
 
Traffic generation, overall highway safety, adequacy of parking. Plus, size, layout, and 
density of buildings 

Size of site, building density with the mass and bulk of buildings with merging of existing 
settlements creates urban creep inappropriate to sensitive proximity to National Park and 
existing residential settlements.  Less dense more gradual transition to the SDNP would 
achieve a more sustainable safe level of traffic.  No plans for essential and extensive 
redesign and upgrades to existing road networks (width, quality, and junctions) to take new 
peak loads. No integrated route plans for safe commuting or leisure walking and cycling. 
Impossible to get safely to any railhead on foot or by bicycle.  
Current inadequate traffic planning assessments with no solutions justified by reliance on 
historic metering and out of date growth predictions and scope require an urgent second 
opinion.   

Precautionary and/or Grampian principle or… 

COVID 19 & Climate Change emergency crises with the many unanswered concerns require 
invoking of ‘Precautionary Principle’ or….?  Only approach is to decline / delay or approve 
with strict conditions to ensure a review meets basic proposition that it is better to be safe 
than sorry.  This ‘Principle’ or similar approach will ensure circumstances where evidence 
validates unequivocal existence of a threat to environment, human health, general safety, 
and sustainability is fully reviewed for any ‘safe’ amendments.  Without objection, 
deferment, or heavy conditioning it would be unsafe to approve this application as it stands. 

Page 36

Minute Item 187.

Page 54

EHA_PappsL
Typewriter
Appendix 1



Appendix 2 
 
Horndean Parish Council submission to the planning meeting of East Hampshire District 
Council to be held on 11th June 2020.  
 
APPLICATION NUMBER:- 55562/005.  
PROPERTY:- Land east of Horndean, Rowlands Castle Rd, Horndean  
NATURE OF APPLICATION:-Outline planning application with all matters reserved, except 
the means of access to the highway network (junction arrangements) and associated 
highway improvements, for the demolition of existing buildings and the residential-led (C3) 
mixed-use development of the site with up to 800 dwellings, up to 2ha of employment land 
(uses B1 and B2), a Local Centre (including: local retail (food and non-food A1); financial 
and professional services (A2); restaurants, cafés, and drinking establishments (A3 and 
A4), hot food takeaways (A5), together with a primary school (D1) and community facilities 
(D2)), informal and formal open space, allotments, and acoustic bunds, together with 
associated drainage, utilities and all other associated and necessary infrastructure 
(additional information and amended plans received 31/07/19, 06/09/19, 26/09/19, 21/10/19, 
04/03/20, and 04/05/20. 
 
 
Submission:- 
1. The Parish Council has made various objections and raised comments on the 

application since it was first made. The committee report produced for the planning 
meeting indicates that a number of these points will be dealt with by suggested 
conditions and in the s106 agreement with the remainder being determined as part of 
the reserved matters application.  

2. The s106 agreement needs the detail of the sports pitch. Sport England require a 3G 
pitch. Query overprovision of 3G pitches as HTC have funds for this and there is a pitch 
at Havant. Cumulative cost of running so many pitches would be prohibitive for the area. 
Floodlighting unacceptable for residential area. More basic pitch required for 
community use and which offers other uses.  

3. S106 heads of terms show allocation of funding to improve multi modal access to 
Rowlands Castle and RC station. Limited parking and stopping trains at this station. 
Commuters would catch fast trains from Petersfield and Havant.  

 
CONCLUSION:- No objection on the basis that Horndean Parish Council will be fully 
involved and consulted upon in the reserved matters application. The Parish Council would 
like to be a party to the s106 agreement and involved in the negotiation of it.  

Page 37Page 55



Appendix 3 
 

EHDC Planning Application 55562/005 - Development Land East of Horndean (LEOH) 

Comments by Rowlands Castle Parish Council (RCPC) for consideration by members 

of EHDC Planning Committee on 11th June 2020 

 

Notwithstanding the S106 contributions for the mini-roundabout system in Rowlands Castle 

and the multi-modal access to Rowlands Castle station, there are still matters that are not 

adequately addressed despite RCPC raising them in our three previous responses to this 

Application and its various Amendments.  These are as follows: 

Application’s Inadequate Assessment of Traffic 

1. Significant underestimate that only 16% of the traffic from the development would use 

the B2149 at peak times towards Havant/Emsworth. RCPC estimates that a figure of 

more like 28% of traffic from the development would use this road, which would result in 

an overall increase in traffic on this road of 20%. 

 

2. Significant underestimate that only one additional vehicle in the morning peak hour will 

travel on Rowlands Castle Road towards the station and potentially on through 

Rowlands Castle towards Chichester. 
 

3. No assessment of the cumulative impact of traffic arising from the two proposed Land 

East of Horndean developments north of Rowlands Castle Road. 

 

4. Incorrect claim that no additional traffic would use the B2148 at peak times. 

 

5. No recognition that additional traffic will use Castle Road to travel eastwards from 

B2149 through Rowlands Castle. No mitigation proposed for the already dangerous 

junction with Havant Road. 

 

6. No assessment of the impact of increased traffic on the junction of B2149 and Mallard 

Road that already experiences delays and queuing at peak times.  

 

7. Insufficient consideration of cumulative impact of additional traffic that would use the 

B2149 to access the A3(M), arising from sites allocated in the emerging Havant 

Borough Local Plan.  Sites for 2,400 dwellings (including Southleigh Strategic Site) up to 

2036 and a further 1,000 thereafter are allocated. 

 

8. No consideration of the possible access road to B2149 from the Havant Thicket 

Reservoir 350m south of the southernmost access to this LEOH site which is additional 

to that in the lapsed planning application, or of its traffic impact. Like the LEOH access, 

it would be opposite the SDNP. 

Other Concerns 

9. No recognition that the Rowlands Castle GP surgery, in whose catchment area the 

entire site lies, has very limited parking facilities for those who drive. 

Page 38Page 56



Planning application: 55562/005 

Land East of Horndean 

Written deputation on behalf of Bloor Homes (the applicant) 

Thank you for this opportunity to make a representation regarding our outline application.   

We welcome the Officers’ positive recommendation, draft conditions, and S106 Heads of Terms. 

This application is the culmination of over 3 years extensive work with Officers, statutory and non 
statutory consultees, and key local stakeholders.  We would like to thank all those involved for their 
efforts in shaping the proposals since the application was submitted in 2018. 

The site, which is in a sustainable location, is allocated for development in the adopted Local Plan.   
The principle of development is firmly established and the application, which is supported by a robust 
policy, technical and environmental evidence base, is deliverable by Bloor Homes. 

The application is in outline form with only the detail of the accesses for consideration at this time. All 
other matters will come forward as part of future reserved matters applications, a process which will 
provide further consultation opportunities involving the Council, stakeholders, and the community.    

As well as providing new open market homes, 40% will be affordable homes.  A range of new facilities 
will benefit residents and the local community, including: 

• A new primary school and Early Years facility. 
• Allotments, equipped play areas, outdoor gym equipment and significant areas of informal 

public open space, which far exceeds policy requirements. 
• An all-weather ‘3G’ Sports Pitch and skate park. 
• A new Local Centre including a community facility.  
• Wildlife and biodiversity enhancements, including replacement hedgerow along Havant 

Road and significant tree planting throughout the scheme.  
• New and improved pedestrian and cycle linkages, local bus services and enhancements to the 

local highway network. 
• Employment land and small-scale retail facilities. 

The timing and delivery of development phases will be determined as part of the S106 process. We 
expect facilities such as the primary school, community facility and local centre to be delivered within 
the earlier phases of the development.  

The significant informal open space areas, will provide additional opportunities for tree and landscape 
planting, providing an attractive setting for new residents and the community.   

Financial contributions towards the provision of off-site facilities will include a cricket pitch.  These will 
be delivered by Bloor Homes or via contributions in the region of £12m through Section 106 or CIL, 
with up to 15% of CIL receipts being passed to the parish councils.  

Bloor Homes is committed to delivering high quality homes and community facilities and realising the 
numerous and significant benefits of the development.  

We hope the Committee can support the positive recommendation, which will provide the certainty 
to ensure that this long-standing development site can be brought forward. 

Thank you for your time. 

 

Page 39Page 57

EHA_PappsL_1
Typewriter
Appendix 4



Appendix 5 
 

Representation by Cllr Hatter, Ward Councillor for Horndean Kings and Blendworth, in regard to the 

planning application for Outline Planning relating to Development of Land East of Horndean under 

reference 55562/005 to the EHDC Planning Committee. 

 

Date of Meeting: 11 June 2020 

 

Outline Recommendation: My recommendation is that the planning application is accepted by the 

committee. 

 

Reasons:  

1) The outline planning application follows a previously accepted application broadly in line 

with the same scheme being presented here (the new application has an additional 100 

dwellings but falls within the JCS requirements). 

 

2) The application is in line with the East Hampshire District Local Plan and forms one of the 

allocated ‘large sites’.  

 

3) The site provides new facilities for local employment; school provision; recreational (sport 

and culture) facilities and improved transport links for walkers, cyclists and public transport 

users. 

 

Local Considerations: 

 

1) With the application being for a large site, there are significant benefits to the existing 

community in the area as well as provision being put in place for place making and providing 

facilities, including schooling, transport, employment and affordable housing.  

 

2) The application at this stage maintains many reserve matters which must include the layout 

of the site; the current proposal to split the school, community building and retail units by 

roads is highly likely to create additional requirements to cross roads; create traffic on the 

site which tails back onto the main road and increase idling of vehicles. I see that the 

Council’s place making team will be working with the developers to improve this. 

 

3) It is noted that additional provision for footways, cycle ways and bus access within the local 

area have already been secured. It is key that there are good access routes for residents 

between the LEOH site and Horndean centre, HTC, other local facilities and Rowlands Castle. 

These works will provide the necessary access for residents of the site but also provide 

upgrades for all local users and provide additional East-West corridors that overcome the 

barrier that the A3 road creates. 

  

4) In regard to upgrade work at Rowlands Castle station; being the nearest station does not 

mean that this would necessarily be the station of choice for the local commuter and further 

work should be done to map the rail commuter travel choices. 

Page 40Page 58



Appendix 5 
 

 

5) The open space provision for formal and informal green infrastructure is encouraging and 

provides much more accessible green space for residents of Horndean and the site itself. The 

positives of opening up this large area of largely inaccessible farmland outweigh a loss of 

some trees especially with the increased biodiversity that is being proposed. It is important 

to ensure that this is secured in the S106 agreement and is firmly monitored afterwards; it is 

easy to plant out areas but there must be a focus on using the correct plants on the site and 

ensuring that they are fully established before this is handed over.  

 

6) The proposal to provide a rubber crumbed 3G pitch on site is one that should be considered 

carefully during reserve matters as a multisport surface or grass surface may be better whilst 

lighting and secure fencing should be included if progressed in this way. 

 

7) The developers’ commitment to build to 10% above the part L building regs is encouraging 

especially with updates due to those building regulations. 

 

Many thanks, 

 

Cllr Chris Hatter 

EHDC Ward Member for Horndean Kings and Blendworth 

Page 41Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 

S106 Heads of Terms 
 

No. Obligation Amount 
 

 Owners covenants 
 

 

1.1 Provide written notice to the district council and county 
council of intended date of first commencement of 
development and notify the councils within 14 days of its 
occurrence 
 

N/A 

1.2 Provide written notice to the district council and county 
council of the intended dates for the following and notify 
the councils within 14 days of each occurrence: 
• Commencement of development in each phase 
• Occupation of the first residential dwelling in a phase 
• Occupation of the first unit on the employment land 
• Occupation of 50th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 100th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 150th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 200th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 250th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 300th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 350th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 400th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 450th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 500th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 550th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 600th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 650th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 700th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 750th residential dwelling 
• Occupation of 800th residential dwelling 
 

N/A 

1.3 Compliance with affordable housing requirements 
 

N/A 

1.4 Payment of monitoring and administration fee to the 
council 
 

£10,000 

1.5 Phasing & Sub-Phasing to be defined by reference to 
Phasing Plan required by Condition 3 (as amended) 
 

N/A 

 Community Project Worker 
 

 

2.1 Financial contribution towards Community Project 
Worker 
 

£250 per 
dwelling 

 POS management and Maintenance  

Page 61



2 
 

 

3.1 Requirement for council’s written approval of an entity 
for the maintenance and management arrangements of 
all of the following across the entire development: 
 
• Informal and formal Public Open Space 
• Ecological Mitigation Areas 
• Sustainable Drainage System (other than those 
associated with adopted highways) 
 
Proposals to include full details of the proposed 
structure and voting rights of the entity (if management 
company) and management plan 
 

N/A 

3.2 That all areas of open space remain as such in 
perpetuity 
 

 

3.3 Requirement to form the management company in 
accordance with the approved proposal and for the 
council to approve the management plan in writing 
 

N/A 

3.4 Preparation and submission of the management plan(s) 
for open space, ecological mitigation and SUDs 
drainage to the council for written approval. Proposals to 
include details of how costs shall be met and access 
arrangements to the public open space regulated 
 

N/A 

3.5 Requirement to repair and maintain the land and 
facilities in each phase to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the council and in accordance with the management 
plan 
 

N/A 

 Travel plan 
 

 

4.1 Provide the travel plan cash deposit/bond to the county 
council and pay the county council the cost of approving 
the travel plans 
 

Cash deposit/ 
Bond TBC 

4.2 Pay the county council the cost of monitoring the travel 
plans 
 

£3,000 (five 
times) 

4.3 Prior to the occupation of any relevant phase or sub-
phase of development, a Travel Plan for any residential, 
school or employment/retail uses proposed within that 
phase, where these have a floorspace of 1000sqm or 
more, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. These shall be based on the 
Framework Travel Plan, April 2019. 
 

N/A 

4.4 Implementation of travel plan N/A 

Page 62



3 
 

 

4.5 Appointment of travel plan coordinator 
 

N/A 

 Drainage – SUDS and Foul Water 
 

 

5.1 Submission and approval of arrangements for 
management and maintenance in perpetuity of the 
sustainable surface water drainage systems, and 
implementation 
 

N/A 

5.2 Maintenance of SuDS scheme in accordance with 
agreed regime 
 

 

 Employment Land 
 

 

6.1 Provision of road connection to employment land 
boundary via Dell Piece East / Havant Road roundabout 
of adoptable standard and connections for services to 
serve the employment 
 

N/A 

6.2 Submission and approval of marketing strategy to 
dispose of the employment land. Employment land to be 
made available on the open market in accordance with 
the strategy 
 

N/A 

6.3 Owner permitted to consider alternative uses for the 
employment land, subject to relevant permissions, if all 
or part has not been disposed of for use as employment 
land by the end of the marketing period 
 

N/A 

 Public open space, Outdoor Play and Sports 
 

 

7.1 Council to approve in writing arrangements for provision 
of public open space and community facilities on land 
not less than XX ha, including, football pitch, allotments, 
XX LEAPs, trim trail, semi-natural open 
space, informal open space, grassland buffers, ecology 
buffers, woodland, existing and proposed trees, 
provision of land for skate park, shrub planting, 
structural planting and footpaths, and car parking 
 

N/A 

7.2 Public open space including LEAP and trim trail 
equipment to be laid out 
 

N/A 

 Allotments 
 

 

8.1 Complete allotments in accordance with specification set 
out at schedule YY and offer to Horndean Parish 
Council within 2 months of completion and then, if not 
required by Horndean Parish Council, to 

N/A 

Page 63



4 
 

Rowlands Castle Parish Council within a further 2 
months 
 

8.2 If accepted by parish council within 2 months of offer 
being made, transfer allotments to parish council 
 

N/A 

8.3 Transfer to include a restrictive covenant that allotments 
shall only be used for allotments 
 

N/A 

8.4 Meet all reasonable legal costs incurred by parish 
council in connection with transfer of allotments 
 

TBC 

 Cricket Pitch and Pavilion  

9.1 Pay cricket pitch and pavilion contribution TBC 
 

 Community Facility 
 

 

10.1 Complete community facility in accordance with 
specification set out in schedule 
 

N/A 

10.2 If community facility built by developer offer to Horndean 
parish council within 2 months of completion or if 
financial payment then offer to transfer land to Horndean 
parish council within 2 months of payment 
 

N/A 

10.3 Transfer to include restrictive covenant that community 
facility shall only be used for community use 
 

N/A 

10.4 If accepted by parish council within 2 months of offer 
being made, transfer community facility 
 

N/A 

10.5 Meet all reasonable legal costs incurred by parish 
council in connection with transfer of community facility 
 

TBC 

10.6 If council requires payment of community facility 
contribution, provide a serviced site for the community 
facility and offer unencumbered freehold to council 
 

N/A 

10.7 If accepted, transfer the serviced site to the council 
 

N/A 

10.8 Payment of community facility contribution to council 
 

TBC 

10.9 Owners to provide a sign to advertise community 
facilities, to the council’s design and layout, describing 
the community facilities within the development in a 
location to be agreed with the council 
 

Max. £2,000 

 Skate park 
 

 

Page 64



5 
 

11.1 Pay skate park contribution 
 

£50,000 

 Highways works  

12.1 Phased Delivery of Highway Infrastructure Works  
with regards to site access, off-site 
improvements, PROW contributions (if applicable), Bus 
Service provision, and Travel Plan to be agreed 
 

TBC 

12.2 Provision of minibus service to Horndean Technology 
 

N/A 

12.3 Provision of bus service to development in accordance 
with Service Level Agreement 
 

N/A 

12.4 Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) payment to seek to 
reduce speeds on Dell Piece East to 30mph 
 

£6,000 

12.5 Contribution towards Rowlands Castle Double Mini 
Roundabout improvement scheme 
 

£482,000 

12.6 Contributions towards the Multi-Modal access to 
Rowlands Castle and Rowlands Castle Railway Station 
 

£201,000 

 School site 
 

 

13.1 Provide details of the design of the proposed 
infrastructure relating to the primary school land and all 
parts of the land immediately adjacent to it to the county 
council 
 

N/A 

13.2 Grant the county council access to the primary school 
land for the purpose of undertaking surveys and 
investigations 
 

N/A 

13.3 Notify the county council prior to any negotiations with 
telecommunications and data communications providers 
that may serve the primary school land and ensure 
services are compatible with council’s requirements 
 

N/A 

13.4 Primary school land to be cleared, level and remediated, 
as required, and not within the floodplain 
 

N/A 

13.5 Any environmental remediation scheme reasonably 
required by county council is to have been implemented 
 

N/A 

13.6 Programme of archaeological work required and 
approved by county council is to have been 
implemented 
 

N/A 

Page 65



6 
 

13.7 Any charge over the primary school land has been 
released and all necessary steps taken to enable county 
council to be registered with an absolute freehold 
 

N/A 

13.8 Removal of any unexploded ordnance from the primary 
school land 
 

N/A 

13.9 Enclosure of primary school land with a 2m high Heras 
fence or hoarding 

N/A 

13.10 Provision of a Land Registry-compliant plan showing 
precise location, size and boundaries of primary school 
land 
 

N/A 

13.11 Transfer of freehold interest in primary school land to 
county council subject to restrictive covenant 
 

N/A 

13.12 Provision of access and services to primary school land 
 

N/A 

13.13 Provision of temporary services and access to primary 
school site 
 

N/A 

13.14 Maintain access and services to primary school land at 
owner’s expense until school transfer date or relevant 
statutory undertaker has assumed responsibility 
 

N/A 

13.15 Maintain temporary services and access serving primary 
school land at owner’s expense until school transfer 
date or relevant statutory undertaker has assumed 
responsibility 
 

N/A 

13.16 Provision of services and access to primary school land 
 

N/A 

13.17 Primary school land to be used for educational purposes 
and community facilities for 25 years 
 

N/A 

13.18 If construction has not commenced on the primary 
school, county council will transfer land to owner of land 
 

N/A 

13.19 Retain additional primary school land undeveloped 
except as temporary open space for 5 years 
 

N/A 

12.20 County Council may offer to purchase additional school 
land at residential value 
 

N/A 

13.21 Transfer additional primary school land to county council 
 

N/A 

13.22 If transfer is not completed within transfer period, 
provision in paragraph 13 no longer apply 
 

N/A 

Page 66



7 
 

 Affordable housing 
 

 

14.1 40% of residential dwellings in a phase to be 
constructed on affordable housing land are designated 
as affordable housing 
 

N/A 

14.2 Affordable dwellings tenure mix to be agreed with 
council 
 

N/A 

14.3 5% of affordable housing in each phase to be fully 
wheelchair accessible, with size, type and tenure to be 
agreed with Housing Services Manager 

N/A 

14.4 Council to approve listed matters (layout, mix and 
tenure, location) with respect to affordable housing 
 

N/A 

14.5 Affordable housing mix 
 

 

14.6 Affordable dwellings only to be let or disposed of to 
designated person or registered provider 
 

N/A 

14.7 All affordable dwellings to be constructed in accordance 
with specified details and fully compliant with Homes 
and Communities Agency requirements 
 

N/A 

14.8 50% of affordable dwellings in each phase to be 
delivered and transferred to registered provider or 
designated person prior to the occupation of 50% of 
market dwellings within that phase 
 

N/A 

14.9 All affordable dwellings in phase to be delivered and 
transferred to registered provider or designated person 
 

N/A 

14.10 Details relating to transfer of rights to registered provider 
 

N/A 

14.11 Notify council’s Housing Service Manager of date when 
each affordable rented unit will be available for first 
occupation 
 

N/A 

14.12 Notify council’s Housing Service Manager of date when 
each affordable dwelling to be disposed of by shared 
ownership lease will be available for first occupation 
 

N/A 

14.13 Provisions do not bind any person who exercises the 
right to acquire or who has’ staircased’ to 100% of the 
equity of a shared ownership lease, their mortgagee, or 
their successors in title 
 

N/A 

14.14 Conditions under which provisions do not apply to 
mortgagee in possession 

N/A 

Page 67



8 
 

 

14.15 Provision to vary percentages subject to a viability 
assessment 
 

N/A 

 Employment and training plan 
 

 

15.1 Employment and training plan to be agreed 
 

N/A 

 Council and County Council Covenants to the 
Owners 
 

 

16.1 Set out requirements for councils in relation to 
contributions and highways works 
 

N/A 

16.2 Provide further details of highway works 
 

N/A 

16.3 Provide draft transfer documents for school site 
 

N/A 

 Clerk of Works 
 

 

17.1 Pay Clerk of Works contribution  £25,000 

 
 

Page 68


	Agenda
	 
	6. Future Items
	7.(i) 55562/005/OUT/SaH - Development Land East of Horndean, Rowlands Castle Road, Horndean, Waterlooville
	55562_005 LEOH APPENDIX 1 11th June Minutes
	Minutes
	182. Acceptance of Supplementary Matters
	185. PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council - Applications and related planning matters to be determined or considered by the Council as the local planning authority
	187. 55562/005/OUT/SaH - Development Land East of Horndean, Rowlands Castle Road, Horndean, Waterlooville
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


	55562_005 5th November APPENDIX 2 Revised S106 Heads of Terms Lies




